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Financial Highlights

MBERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2016 2015 Change
#E
USD’000 UusD’000
FET FET
Revenue WA 669,896 485,371 38.0%
Gross profit EF 31,617 22,226 42.3%
Profit before tax G IRRIVE 11,921 9,042 31.8%
Profit for the year FEHE 9,427 6,902 36.6%
Attributable to : LA AR -
Owners of the Company NANBER A 9,279 6,096 52.2%
Earnings per share ("EPS"), TRAN -
— Basic (US cents) BEAR(ER) 2.322 1.806 28.6%
As at 31 December
M12A831H
2016 2015 Change
#E
USD’000 UsD’000
FET FET
Total assets BEE 162,515 125,358 29.6%
Total liabilities BEE 105,675 102,127 3.5%
Net assets BEFRR 56,840 23,231 144.7%
Net financial position® FEIEAR RO 5,278 (32,752) 116.1%
Average turnover days of FEFYEE XS
inventories — days®@ - XK@ 14 13 7.7%
Average turnover days of trade B 5 N FIE Y
receivables — days® HEEESS £GP NC 38 47 -19.1%
Average turnover days of trade B 5 ENFIAFH
payables — days® FEEEDS 2 GO 33 28 17.9%
Gearing ratio — % BERBEE - %O 39.7 158.8 -75.0%
Current ratio © BN LLFRE@ 1.4 1.1 27.3%

2016 ANNUAL REPORT & [Z &



The balance of net financial position is calculated as the sum of bank
balances and cash minus bank borrowings.

Average turnover days of inventories is derived by dividing the arithmetic
mean of the opening and closing balances of inventories for the relevant
year by cost of sales and multiplying by 365 days.

Average turnover days of trade receivables is derived by dividing the
arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balances of gross trade
receivables for the relevant year by revenue and multiplying by 365 days.

Average turnover days of trade payables is derived by dividing the
arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balances of trade payables
for the relevant year by cost of sales and multiplying the resulting value by
365 days.

Gearing ratios were calculated based on the total interest-bearing
borrowings as at the respective dates divided by total equity as at the
respective dates and multiplied by 100%.

Current ratios were calculated based on the total current assets as at the
respective dates divided by the total current liabilities as at the respective
dates.

Financial Highlights
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Board of
Directors”) of Smart-Core Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for 2016, which is the first
annual report since the listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

The Group commenced its business since 2005 and has
successfully developed into a leading distributor and technical
value-added service provider of IC and other electronic
components based in the PRC. We have been maintaining over
ten years of stable partnership with the biggest supplier of the
Group and also have a loyal and diversified customer base. In
addition, the application engineering support helps us maintain
symbiotic relationship with suppliers and customers.
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REVIEW OF 2016

The year 2016 marks a breakthrough year for the Group. As
the performance indicates, both the sales revenue and the
annual profit of the Group achieved a record high, which were
US$670 million and US$9.4 million respectively, representing
an increase of 38.0% and 36.2% over the same period of last
year respectively. The Group maintained its leading position
in the product lines in display, broadcasting and memory and
got started in optical telecommunication, touch screen display,
smart automotive electronics, security monitoring and loT,
laying a solid foundation for future development. The Group
launched e-commerce platform in 2015, which gradually
developed in 2016 and enabled small and medium enterprises
to purchase IC and other electronic components with fine
quality more easily.

With the remarkable market performance achieved in
semiconductor distribution in the PRC and the sizeable market
scale, the Company was listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on 7 October 2016. The successful
listing, apart from inspiring the whole Company, infused new
vitality to the future development of the Group and enhanced
our capital resources, and therefore enabled us to fulfill
business strategy and expand business more effectively in the
future. Due to the listing, the enterprise image of the Group
was also polished and the market position was reinforced. On
behalf of the Company, | hereby extend my gratitude to each
professional team for their assistance and to each employee for
their dedication and efforts during the whole listing process.

Chairman’s Statement
FERES

20165 @
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

OUTLOOK IN 2017

After a fruitful year of 2016, our vision is more widen but this
is just a new beginning, we will proceed to march to new
milestones. In 2017, with the advancing of industry upgrading
strategy in China, positioned as an enterprise bridging cutting-
edge technologies and products with high quality, the Group
will continue to develop through the following three business
strategies:

o To upgrade technical value-added services

The Group will provide comprehensive technical value-
added services for customers and seek and reinforce
new technical growth points for the Group by exploring
and deepening its technical intervention in each areas
of semiconductor sales. The Group will reinforce its
leading advantage over consumer electronic products,
tap into the area of industrial control, artificial intelligence
and storage technology, and improve comprehensive
capacity in technical value-added services in terms of
optical-communication, commercial display, automotive
electronics, security monitoring and loT products, with
a view to providing integrated solutions and technical
support for more chip companies and creating greater
value for customers.

] To expand supply chain value-added services

Leveraging on the advantages of being a listed company,
the Group will expand supply chain value-added services
and provide one-stop comprehensive component services
and efficient component delivery services with high
quality for customers via e-commerce platform.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT & [Z &
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] To be poised in industry resource integration

China’s semiconductor sector is blessed with
unprecedented development opportunities. As a
semiconductor distribution enterprise grown up in PRC,
we have accumulated extensive industry experience and
explored effective business mode of technology and
supply chain value-added services. The Company will
start to integrate resources from counterparts, upstream
and downstream in the future and strive to build the
Group into a semiconductor leading transaction platform
in China by such ways as the expansion of international
markets, investment and cooperation.

Looking into the future, we brim with confidence; Confronted
with challenges, we have high morale. Faced with challenges
and opportunities in the new year, we proceed to make
arduous efforts in a bid to infuse vigor into the development of
the Company and bring more return to shareholders.

In the end, | extend my heartfelt gratitude to each shareholder,
business partner, member of the Board of Directors, the
management of the Company and all staff for their assistance
and support rendered to the development of the Company.

Tian Weidong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmE D

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
a total revenue of US$669.9 million, representing an increase
of 38% as compared with previous financial year, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in sales of smart-
TV, efficient management in market segments, the progress
made in intelligent broadcasting terminal business line and
the revenue generated from some new products. Revenue in
2016 was mainly derived from the consumer market, which
is constantly evolving and always competitive and subject
to industrial technological shifts, nonetheless the Group
responded to overall challenges and dramatic changes of the
market by maintaining its steady business strategy, striving
to provide technical support and value added services and
appropriate inventories management, as well as effectively
utilizing business and management strategies. In addition,
such increase in revenue in 2016 was also attributed by the
rapid growth of TV differentiated market and IPTV set-top box
industry. Meanwhile, the rising demand for DRAM and NAND
flash memory also contributed to the increase in revenue of
the Group. In 2016, the Group was also dedicated to further
enhancing its long term business relationships with suppliers
and customers, and has received full support from suppliers so
as to effectively satisfy demands from customers.

The Group operated a number of product types, which
included smart media display, intelligent broadcasting terminal
and memory. Initial differentiated operation success of smart
media display products plus stable and balanced support
from major customers enabled a solid growth of smart media
display product lines. Upon the integration of the industry,
its customers grew steadily and in particular in the second
quarter of 2016 , the Group recorded a year-on-year increase
of near 100%. Benefiting from substantial growth of IPTV box
of China’s three major operators, the intelligent broadcast
terminal product exceeded its operation objectives and
realised doubled growth. The aforementioned two product
types turned second quarter of 2016 into an unusual peak
season that is different from previous years with a year-on-year
increase of about 100%. Furthermore, due to the shortage of
inventories, the memory product recorded a slight decrease in
its overall sales, but with the team’s effort in adjusting customer
structure, with the dem and supply optimising risk control and
improving operation indicators, a better overall performance
was achieved.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's development of and investment in new products
and new product types in the past years have paid off in 2016.
In particular, mobile terminal, touch screen display and optical
communication product type experienced a tremendous
growth; loT and security monitoring divisions finished their
product positioning and market layout, thus laying a desirable
foundation for subsequent development; the smart projector
segment that the Company had been interested in for two
years also made great progress this year. In the future, the
Company will insist on investing in one new product line every
year, constantly cultivate it for two to three years to fully learn
about and participate in the segment and work intensively on
it for in-depth exploration and developing technology value-
added services, in order to become a professional distributor
and service provider and identify next emerging target for the
Company.

The Group adopts an OAO (online and offline) business model
and operates an e-commerce platform together with a physical
sales network of seven sales offices set up in selected areas
within the PRC for the distribution of IC and other electronic
components. Our e-commerce platform is an online front-end
customer interaction interface made up of SMC Cloud, SuperlC
Community and SuperlC Navigator. Our sales offices, sales
representatives and application engineers represent the offline
part of our OAO business model. In 2016, we were committed
to improve the efficiency of service, expand the market shares
and achieve sustainable development through the e-commerce
platform. Smart-Core Planet targeted to provide services
for small and medium enterprises, entrepreneurship and
innovation customers and smart appliance incubators, based
on the introduction of more qualified suppliers to diversify our
electronic component materials and provide technical solutions
on more areas, in order to offer one station supply chain
services to more customers and boost the mutual business
development between customers and suppliers and Smart-
Core Planet.

The Company was honoured to be listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 7 October 2016, and was awarded
with the Top Ten Local Distributors Award presented by ESM,
a renowned media within the industry the same month, which
indicated a recognition of the Company’s performance and
efforts in 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmE D

OUTLOOK

Based on the development in 2016, the Group will continue
specialising in smart media display, intelligent broadcasting
terminal and memory products, and intend to promote
customer loyalty and secure more purchases from customers.
We will enhance the Group's technology value-added services,
customer service, and order fulfillment and delivery capabilities
to ensure our general solutions are more reliable and shorten
the product cycle for our customer and to facilitate the bulk
sales of customers’ products. In 2017, the Group intends
to focus on projector, automobile electronics, security and
protection and small-size display products as the Group’s
strategic targets, meanwhile reinforce the introduction and
operation of new product lines and keep focusing on facilitating
operation efficiency, costs saving and conducting strict risk
management on uncertain economic factors.

We will further enhance our e-commerce platform with the
aim to improve our customers’ online procurement experience
with us. We plan to continue our investment in technologies
and infrastructure to support our growing e-commerce
platform by acquiring software and equipment to strengthen
our e-commerce platform and ERP system and expanding our
e-commerce platform operation team. We intend to further
improve our infrastructure so that our e-commerce platform
can fully integrate with our ERP system for better logistics,
inventory control and sales data analysis. We believe that data
on customer behaviour and transactions will provide us with
valuable insights to help us and our suppliers to improve our
product offering and services.

Looking forward to 2017, despite the uncertainties and
competition, the Group will continue to actively explore market
opportunities and strive for new developments. To reach the
long-term goal of being sustainably profitable, we will continue
to expand the market share of our existing product types,
implement strictly cost control and strengthen capital position.
It's believed that our profitability will be further boosted and
favourable returns and long-term values will be brought to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's revenue
amounted to US$669.9 million. There was an increase of
US$184.5 million (+38.0%) as compared with the revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2015: US$485.4 million).
The increase in revenue was mainly contributed by the increase
in sales from our intelligent broadcasting terminal products of
US$88.4 million and smart media display products of US$87.5
million. A new top five customer boosted the sales of the
intelligent broadcasting products. In addition, sales to one of
our top five customers also increased to cater for improved
broadcasting standard of set-top box for sales in the PRC. Sales
from smart media display increased as a result of the increase
in demand from our major customers to cater for their business
need and wider range of products sold to them.

Gross profit

Our gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
increased by US$9.4 million to US$31.6 million (2015: US$22.2
million). The increase was in line with our increase in revenue.
Our gross profit margin remained relatively stable at 4.72% for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 4.58%).

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses mainly comprises of staff
cost incurred for our research and development department.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, research and
development expenses amounted to US$$2.4 million, increased
by 14.1% as compared with the year ended 31 December
2015 (2015: US$2.1 million). The increase was in line with the
increase in revenue and the need of technical support from the
new top five customer also made the expenses increased.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Administrative, selling and distribution expenses

Administrative, selling and distribution expenses amounted to
an aggregate of US$11.1 million for year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: US$9.4 million), which accounted for 1.7% of
the revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
1.9%). The net increase of US$1.7 million was mainly due to 1)
increase in staff costs as a result of increase in headcounts for
the development of the E-commerce platform; 2) increase in
rental expenses, in which additional offices were leased in both
Hong Kong and the PRC; and 3) increase in product distribution
costs which was in line with the increase in revenue.

Interest expense on bank borrowings

The Group's interest expense on bank borrowings for the year
ended 31 December 2016 amounted to US$3.6 million (2015:
US$1.8 million), increased by US$1.8 million as compared with
that in 2015. The significant increase was due to the increase
in the average balance of bank borrowings during the year.
In addition, as the Group has entered into various factoring
arrangements with some of the principal bankers, the increase
in revenue also made the costs increased.

Profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company’s
profits amounted to US$9.4 million, representing an increase
of US$2.5 million as compared to US$6.9 million in 2015, an
increment of 36.2%. The net profit margin for year ended 2016
was 1.41%, which was maintained at a similar level with financial
year 2015, despite of the listing expenses amounted to US$2.4
million absorbed in 2016 (2015: US$1.2 million).

Net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
The net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for

2016 reached US$9.3 million, representing an increase of
52.2% as compared with 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Use of proceeds from the global offering

The shares of the Company were listed (the “Listing”) on the
Stock Exchange on 7 October 2016 (the “Listing Date”). The
Company issued 125,000,000 new shares with the nominal
value of US$0.00001 at HK$1.83 per share. The net proceeds
from the Listing received by the Company were approximately
HK$205.8 million after deducting underwriting fees and
estimated expenses in connection with the Listing.

The Group has utilised approximately HK$21.4 million of
the net proceeds at 31 December 2016. The unutilised net
proceeds have been placed as deposits with banks.
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RRRDPA20165F10 A7 B ([ £ B H# ) 7EHE 32
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Amount
utilised as
at 31 December Amount
Use of proceeds Net proceeds 2016 remaining
R2016%F
12A31H
FISFIERZE FRERIRFE 2 EARE FIERFRIE
(in HK$ million) (in HK$ million) (in HK$ million)
(B&E%#T) (B&%1T) (BZ#T)
1. Hiring additional staff for sales and marketing and business
development and improvement of warehouse facilities 20.6 (0.2) 20.4
BEFETHEITHE R EHURERER - WHREERE
2. Advertising and organising marketing activities for the
promotion of our e-commerce platform, Smart Core Planet
and our new products 41.2 (0.6) 40.6
REEEETE O EI R ERIRNES RAEMEEE
£
3. Enhancing, further developing and maintaining our
e-commerce platform and improving our technology
infrastructure 41.2 (0.0) 41.2
TR E—PEREEEREENEH T URNREME
B i
4. Forresearch and development 20.6 (0.1) 20.5
R
5. Funding potential acquisition of, or investment in business or
companies in e-commerce industry or electronics industry 61.7 (0.0 61.7
REBEEREIREEHITERETTENEB R A RREE
6. General working capital 20.5 (20.5) 0.0
—REEER
205.8 (21.4) 184.4
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group's primary source of funding included cash generated
from operating activities and the credit facilities provided by
banks. The cash position was further enhanced by the net
proceeds received by the Company from the global offering.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, net cash inflow from
the operating activities amounted to US$48.1 million (2015: net
cash outflow of US$9.0 million).

The Group possesses sufficient cash and available banking
facilities to meet its commitments and working capital
requirements. As at 31 December 2016, the Group maintained
bank balances and cash of US$27.8 million (31 December 2015:
US$4.1 million). As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding bank
borrowings of the Group was US$22.6 million (31 December
2015: US$36.9 million). The Group's gearing ratio, based on the
interest-bearing borrowings and total equity, was decreased
from 158.8% as at 31 December 2015 to 39.68% as at 31
December 2016 as a result of the decrease in bank borrowings
and increase of net asset value of the Group after the global
offering.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had current assets of
US$151.4 million (31 December 2015: US$116.3 million) and
current liabilities of US$105.7 million (31 December 2015:
US$102.1 million). The current ratio was 1.43 times as at 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: 1.14 times).

The Group's debtor’s turnover period was 38 days for the year
ended 31 December 2016 as compared to 47 days for the year
ended 31 December 2015. Since the group has entered into
non-recourse factoring agreements with banks in respect of the
Group's trade receivables with certain designated customers,
the debtors’ turnover period was greatly improved.

The creditors’ turnover period was 33 days for year ended 31
December 2016 as compared to 28 days for the year ended 31
December 2015. The longer turnover days was the result of an
increase in credit line offered by our major suppliers after the
Listing.

The inventories’ turnover period was 14 days for year ended
31 December 2016 as compared to 13 days for year ended
31 December 2015. Inventory control was always one of the
primary tasks of the management to maintain the liquidity and
healthy financial position of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's transactions are principally denominated in US
dollars and Renminbi. The Group had not experienced any
material difficulties or material adverse impacts on its operation
despite the fluctuations in currency exchange rates and the net
foreign exchange loss of approximately US$2.3 million during
the year ended 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: US$0.7
million). The Group will consider the use of foreign exchange
forward contracts to reduce the currency exposures in case the
exposures become significant.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2016, available-for-sale investments
amounted to US$7.8 million (31 December 2015: US$5.8
million) and bank deposits amounted to US$32.5 million (31
December 2015: US$6.4 million) had been charged as security
for the bank borrowings of the Group.

Capital commitment and contingent liabilities

The Group had no material capital commitment and contingent
liabilities in both the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Significant investment held

Save for the available-for-sale investments, the Group did not
hold any significant investments during the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2016.

Material Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies

The Group has no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies during the period from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2016.

Employees

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 292 employees,
with majority based in Shenzhen and Hong Kong. Total
employee cost for the year ended 31 December 2016,
excluding Directors’ remuneration were approximately US$8.1
million (2015: US$7.5 million). There have been no material
changes to the information disclosed in the Prospectus
dated 27 September 2016 (the “Prospectus”) in respect the
remuneration of employees, remuneration policies, share award
scheme, share option scheme and staff development.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEE

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company who held office during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian Weidong, aged 50, is the chairman of the Board, an
executive Director and chief executive officer of our Company.
He is the founder of our Group and has been leading our
Group for over 11 years. Mr. Tian was appointed as a Director
of our Company on 22 October 2015. He is also the chairman
of the Company’s nomination committee and a member of the
Company’s remuneration committee. Mr. Tian is responsible
for overseeing the overall business strategy, development of
projects, management and operations of our Group. Further,
Mr. Tian is currently serving as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company, namely Smart-Core International
Company Limited, Smart-Core Cloud Limited and Shenzhen
Smart-Core Technology Co., Ltd. (“SMC Technology SZ"). He is
also the sole director and sole shareholder of Smart IC Limited,
a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules"”)) of the Company.

Mr. Tian has more than 20 years’ experience in the
semiconductor industry and its related distribution. He was
the sales director of Shenzhen Dadong Electronics Co., Ltd.
(which was principally engaged in sales of semiconductors)
from October 1993 to June 1997 where he was in charge of
the management of the sales team, formulation of sales and
marketing strategies and maintenance of business partnerships
with clients and suppliers. He was the sales manager of
Trident Multimedia Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (which
was principally engaged in the design of IC products and the
development of associated system software and application
software) from December 1999 to March 2002 where he was in
charge of sales and marketing.

Mr. Tian obtained a degree of Bachelor of Electronic
Engineering from Xiamen University in July 1989 and a degree
of Master of Business Administration from the National
University of Singapore in March 2000.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong Tsz Leung, aged 53, is an executive Director and
chief financial officer of our Company. He was appointed as
a Director of our Company on 22 October 2015. Mr. Wong
joined our Group in March 2007 and subsequently promoted
to the vice general manager. Mr Wong is responsible for
overseeing the overall strategy and responsible for the financial
operations and management of our Group. He is also the sole
director and sole shareholder of Insight Limited, a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.

Mr. Wong has more than 20 years of experience in business
management. Prior joining our Group, Mr. Wong was the
financial controller of OSSIMA Publishing Group Limited (which
was engaged in travel media business) from January 1995 to
September 2005. Mr. Wong obtained a degree of Master of
Business Administration from University of Wales via its distance
learning program in December 2011.

Mr. Liu Hongbing, aged 50, is an executive Director of our
Company. He was appointed as a Director of our Company
on 22 October 2015. Mr. Liu joined SMC Technology SZ in
February 2007 and acted as the manager of the development
department and was subsequently promoted to vice general
manager. Mr. Liu is responsible for overseeing the overall
strategy and responsible for the research and development
matters of our Group. Further, Mr. Liu is currently serving
as an alternate director to Mr. Tian Weidong in Smart-Core
International Company Limited, as well as an executive director
of Shenzhen Smart-Core Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.. Both
Smart-Core International Company Limited and Shenzhen
Smart-Core Cloud Technology Co., Ltd. are subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Liu has more than 20 years’ experience in the electronic
engineering industry. Prior to joining our Group, He was the
engineer of Hebei Tengfei Electronics Co., Ltd. (which was
principally engaged in the design, manufacturing and sales of
LCD TVs and other electronic appliances) from October 1993
to May 1999 and was the senior engineer of Shenzhen Zhong
Tian Xin Electrical Technologies Co., Ltd. (which was principally
engaged in the design, manufacturing and sales of electronic
products including LED products, LCD TVs and audio devices)
from June 1999 to January 2007. Mr. Liu obtained a degree of
Bachelor of Physics from Shandong University in July 1988 and
a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Xie Yi, aged 45, is an executive Director of our Company.
He was appointed as a Director of our Company on 16 March
2016. Mr. Xie joined SMC Technology SZ in May 2008 and
acted as the manager of the mobile phone business division.
In September 2012, Mr. Xie was appointed as the assistant to
the general manager where he was responsible for assisting
the general manager in respect of internal management of the
sales centers. Mr. Xie has become the head of the e-commerce
platform since August 2015. He is responsible for overseeing
the operations of the e-commerce platform of our Group.

Mr. Xie has more than 20 years of experience in the electronic
technology industry. He joined Xiaxin Electronics Co. Ltd.* (£
FETBRMHERARF]) from January 2001 to December 2005.
He later joined Kuanda (Xiamen) Communication Technologies
Co. Ltd.* (AR (EFT) BAKM AR AF]) from January 2007
to February 2008. Mr. Xie graduated from the Department of
Physics at Xiamen University in July 1995.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Gang, aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director of our Company. Mr. Zheng has been the executive
director of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8143) since August
2007. Mr. Zheng had also been appointed as the independent
non-executive director of China Internet Investment Finance
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Opes Asia Development
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
810) from July 2012 to May 2013. Mr. Zheng has extensive
experience in management in the finance and investment
industry. Mr. Zheng obtained a degree of Bachelor of Electronic
Engineering from Xiamen University in July 1989 and a degree
of Master of Business Administration from University of Wales
in April 1994.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Tang Ming Je, aged 63, is an independent non-executive
Director of our Company. Mr. Tang was an associate professor
of the department of business administration of University of
[llinois at Urbana-Champaign from August 1991 to August
1995, a visiting associate professor of Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 4 January 1994 to January 1995 and
a professor of department of industrial administration of Chang
Gung University from December 1994 to August 1996. He
held various positions in National Taiwan University, including
Professor of the department of international business since
August 1996, founding executive director of the executive
master of business administration program from August 1997 to
July 1999, director of the division of professional development
from March 1998 to July 2004 and vice president for finance
from August 2007 to May 2014. Mr. Tang obtained a degree of
Bachelor of Civil Engineering from National Taiwan University
in June 1975 and a degree of Doctor of Philosophy from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology in September 1985.

Mr. Tang has been an independent director of Fubon Financial
Holding Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2881) since June 2014.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit, aged 50, is an independent non-executive
Director of our Company. Mr. Wong Hon Kit has been the
independent non-executive director of Wanjia Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
401), since 11 April 2013. He was also a non-executive director
of Shaanxi Northwest New Technology Industry Company
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8258) from September 2012 to August 2014.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit has over 15 years of experience in the
corporate finance industry. He has held various positions,
including chief financial officer, director and company secretary
in different companies in Hong Kong, where he has experience
in handling corporate finance transactions such as mergers
and acquisitions, capital fund raising and restructuring. He is
the responsible officer of Greater China Paxwell Limited, a
company providing corporate financial advisory services, from
September 2013 to March 2015. Mr. Wong was appointed
as a Director of Greater China Paxwell Limited since January
2017 where he was responsible supervising type-6 regulated
activities under SFO including corporate finance, internal
control and risk management. He was also responsible for
overseeing the daily operations of the said company.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Wong obtained a Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong
Shue Yan University in July 1991. Mr. Wong currently is a
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and is the member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yin Suqin, aged 34, has been the head of sales and
marketing department of our Company since March 2016. Ms.
Yin joined SMC Technology SZ in March 2010 and acted as
the sales director of the marketing division. She was appointed
as the vice general manager of SMC Technology SZ in August
2014 where she was responsible for assisting the general
manager in respect of the daily operations of the sales centers.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Yin worked for ASEC
International (H.K.) Limited (which was principally engaged as
agents of the semiconductor components) and acted as the
sales supervisor from May 2004 to September 2007 where she
was in charge of the sales and operation of product lines. She
joined E-CMOS Corporation (which was principally engaged
in the design, manufacturing and sales of IC products and
electronics products) and acted as the business manager of the
Southern China region from October 2007 to March 2010 and
her main responsibilities include the sales and marketing duties
in the PRC, managing agents and serving the direct customers.
Ms. Yin completed the study of Applied Electronic Technology
at HeFei University of Technology in July 2001.

Ms. Tang Mei Ling, aged 46, has been the head of finance
department of our Company since March 2016. Ms. Tang
joined SMC International HK in March 2015 and acted as the
financial controller. Ms Tang has over 20 years' experience in
accounting and auditing. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Tang
was the financial controller and assistant company secretary of
Wo Kee Administration Limited. Ms. Tang obtained a degree
of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in November 1993. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, aged 33, was the company secretary of
our Company and was appointed on 16 March 2016. Mr. Lo
has over 8 years of experience in auditing. Mr. Lo started his
professional career at an accounting firm Thomas Cheng &
Company in October 2007 where he handled audit and tax
works. He later left the said firm in August 2011 as an Audit
Supervisor. He subsequently joined RSM Nelson Wheeler,
an accounting firm, as a Senior Auditor in October 2011. In
October 2012, he re-joined Thomas Cheng & Company as an
Audit Manager. He then worked at ADGS Advisory Limited, a
consultancy company, as the assurance and business advisory
manager from July 2013 to April 2016. Mr. Lo is currently the
principal of an accounting firm Justin Lo & Co.

Mr. Lo obtained a degree of Bachelor of Business (Accounting)
from Australian Catholic University in December 2007. He
has been a practising member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since September 2014 and
a member of CPA Australia since November 2011. He was
admitted as an Associate of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong since January 2015 and a member of The Society of
Chinese Accountants and Auditors since November 2014.

* denotes an English translation of a Chinese name and is for identification
only.
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The Directors hereby present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries are trading of electronic
components. The Group have strong capability to provide
engineering support, and operate a distinctive e-commerce
platform. Through closely co-operating with IC technology
vanguards, the Group uses a comprehensive approach in
consolidating industry resources and adopt an OAO (online
and offline) business model to provide high quality core IC
and value-added services to a broad base of customers. Our
products include a wide range of IC and other electronic
components used in application such as smart media display,
intelligent broadcasting terminal, mobile terminal, smart
automotive electronics and memory products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion
on the Group's future business development is set out
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 8 to 11 and in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 12 to 19 of this
annual report.

Compliance with laws and regulations
As far as the Directors are aware, the Group has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the business and operation of the Group during the
year.
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The Group and its activities are subject to requirements
under various laws. These include, among others, Company
Law of the PRC ({ R #E A R KX F1 B A 77% )), Wholly Foreign-
Owned Enterprise Law of the PRC ({ & ZE A R X 1 B 4p &
1b2£)%)), Detailed Implementing Rules for the “Wholly Foreign-
Owned Enterprise Law of the PRC" ({4NE&E X E A A)),
Guidance Catalogue for Industrial Structure Adjustment (2011
Version) ({ E % 45 1% 38 2 15 4 B # ) (2011 4 XK)), the State
Council promulgated Several Policies on Further Encouraging
the Development of the Software and Integrated Circuit
Industries (Guo Fa [2011] No. 4) K Bz BAR EN 88 — A ER EhER
HERMEKERERERNE TERNBA) (B3[2011]458)),
the NDRC promulgated Announcement of NDRC [2013] No. 16
- Guiding Catalogue of Key Products and Services in Strategic
Emerging Industries (BIRERMAEEZ B G NE2013F 516
S BURS T EIE X E I E L MR IEE B 1)), Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622), Business Registration Ordinance
(Chapter 310), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112) and
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57). and the applicable
regulations, guidelines, policies issued or promulgated under
or in connection with our business activities. In addition, the
Listing Rules also apply to the Company.

The Company seeks to ensure compliance with these
requirements through various measures such as internal
controls and approval procedures, trainings and oversight of
various business units with the designated resources at different
levels of the Group. While these measures require considerable
internal resources and result in additional operational cost, the
Group highly values the importance of ensuring compliance
with applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs
and believes business development and environment affairs
are highly related. In 2016, the Group implemented certain
environmental protection measures to save energy and reduce
the consumption of resources. These policies were supported
by our staff and were implemented effectively. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, we had not been subject to any
fines or other penalties due to any non-compliance with health,
safety or environmental regulations.
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To meet stakeholders’ expectations in environmental, social
and governance (ESG) factors, our ESG report is scheduled to
be published within 3 months after the issuance of this annual
report.

Relationship with employees

We believe our employees are the most valuable resources
in achieving our success. We are committed to offering
competitive remuneration package to employees and have
implemented an self-appraisal program to provide incentive
and motivation to the staff to attain periodic goals. The
Company has adopted a share award scheme and a share
option scheme to reward our senior management and
employees for their hard work, contribution and loyalty.

To ensure the quality of our employees at all levels, we have
an intensive and standardised in-house training programmes
to train our new joiners, mainly focusing on skills like company
introduction and working procedure. The goal of the training
programmes is to train our employees and to identify talent,
with the aim of providing upward mobility within the Group,
fostering employee loyalty and incorporating customized
mentoring, coaching and training.

Relationship with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders

The Company understands the importance of maintaining good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its goals
and to gain further success. We strive to maintain long-term
and stable relationship with our major suppliers, which help
to ensure our reliable access to their products. Our customer
service team enables us to maintain close business relationships
with our customers. Our application engineering support
helps us to maintain symbiotic relationship with suppliers and
customers. We believe that our application engineering support
promotes the use of our suppliers’ products and streamlines
our customers’ development process at the same time. Both
our suppliers and customers value our capability to provide
application engineering support in end-product-development.
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Our major supplier are generally reputable IC and other
electronic component companies, and had business
relationship with the Group from 4 to 10 years. Our largest
supplier is headquartered in Taiwan and has a diverse product
portfolio of application specific ICs in various market such as
TV, set-up box and LCD monitor. Our major suppliers include
IC companies that supply memory and silicon turner ICs as well.
The credit period from the major suppliers is 30 to 60 days.

Our major customers include leading brand-name consumer
electronic product manufacturing companies, ODMs and OEMs
in the electronic product industry in the PRC region. The years
of business relationship with the Group ranged from 1 year to
10 years and the credit terms granted to the major customers
from 30 to 60 days. The trade receivables from major customers
are paid on time and no impairment was provided.

Principal risks and uncertainties

We believe that the following are some of the major risks that
may have an adverse effect on our business:

] We are dependent on our major suppliers (“Major
Suppliers”). If our distributorship rights with these Major
Suppliers are terminated, interrupted, or modified in any
way adverse to us, our business, financial condition and
results of operations could be adversely affected. We are
expanding our supplier base by means such as organic
growth of our business, expansion into various product
segments which the Major Suppliers are not the supplier
and through investment in, acquisition of and strategic
cooperation with IC companies and distributors. We have
been expanding and will continue to expand our supplier
base by exploring co-operation opportunities with new
suppliers as well as introducing new product segments
that we consider to have growth potential. We have
implemented guidelines for selecting and introducing
new suppliers and/or new products to our offering.

Directors’ Report

EESHRE

B ETEHERBERANENEKER LKA
EF LR AT BAKEEBIE10FNERH
%o RIS AREANRRRERE  BAEZTL
EREKERERMS HEMENRER - #IA2
MRGBRNFREZEERTS - RANEEH-ERD
BIEHEF R LRSS RKERNEXNER A
Al - ZEX2HEFNEEHN F30E60X -

BMNEERFPEEREMRATEFERITEA
BENBEEFEMBERRARRIGREUER
MRARBRIER - BEAKENEHBEFRN
FIEE10FERETEZEFPHNEERNF30E60
R RETEEPHNEJRUFIADIZFEN » I
B ERE -

TEARRAEERE

BRRA T E2 AR RIS HRMIMETERT
EZ

e HFfFAEBEERMONETEHER(IIEMHE
Bl MREMEELEETBHER ZEND
SHRETAR L~ FRETSE N FMERT - RIERAI
BED - BBIRR L EER XA
FE - BMBEBEFEBNER  RMEEHR
EEABRENSHEERD BAE  ARK
B WEMERKERRRMD HEETE
B S FR T AE S AR P EEREE -
BREGHEARRA FEREM S ARMR
RBEBRBENNHERSE  RAICKLE
HAEERARMIMHEREE - RAIREE
REIAFHERE R, SHEREHEAE o

SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED /i £ f% B[R A &

29



30

Directors’ Report

EEGHRE

. We generally do not enter into long-term agreements
with our customers, and some of them may cancel,
change or postpone their orders. Furthermore, more
than 50% of our revenue during the year was generated
from our largest five customers. The concentration of our
customers exposes us to risks, and the performance of
our major customers may in turn lead to fluctuation or
decline in our revenue. We are investing more resources
on our advertising and organizing marketing activities for
the promotion of our e-commerce platform, Smart-Core
Planet and our new products, with the aim of expanding
our customer base. Apart from expanding our customer
base through Smart-Core Planet, we keep enriching our
product portfolio and expanding our supplier base. We
have identified a number of strategic product segments
which we consider to be fast developing. We will continue
to expand our product portfolio and invest in our value
added engineering support services in relation to such
strategic segments.

] Our profit margins are slim and therefore our profitability
could be adversely affected if our profit margins cannot
be sustained.

] We are dependent on short-term financing. In the event
that our bankers cancel these facilities or the interest rates
at which we could obtain such facilities increases, our
business operations, revenue and profitability could be
adversely affected.

o As a distributor, we do not directly monitor the quality
control procedures of our major suppliers. If a product
that we distribute has defects or performance problems,
our reputation and operation could be adversely affected.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
Group's consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 160.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final

dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). No
interim dividend was declared during the year.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT 4 E k&

o HM-—MRIAEFPIILEHRGE  MHAHE
PrIgE2BUN « Bk B EATE - I
BTN A F Z B B50% 8 AR B AR T
REP - ZfIMEPERERMEERRR -
MEMEEXPHORF AL HFINKAL
BRBE TR - HARAEZERNEHE
BNEEMAR  UERRMNERTA -
BIREHEIMFER - EEBREMNEP
B o BRBRBTHGHEIEBRE PR - 3PS
HELEERASALBEBAMERETE - M
EVERZERFR LK REERNER
Emn#l o HfIeEERAERES K
B BE LB R ) R ARRR VIR (B A2 SCRRARTS

. BEOFEETE  EHERMOFEET
TR RARFIEE ) T E I TR
%2 o

o RFMRERNEHREE - BERMANERRITH
HELEERERRMERELEEREN
MEFD - BPNEBLEE - AR EE

NAREXBITFIEFE

o (FRZHE  RATSEERERRMANEE
HERNEEZEFIEF - MRERFIFTDHH
EmFaEREX MRS HAINBELE

BARHTFILE -
RERDE

REBEZE2016F12ANBULEFEZEBERESE
BNz A 2T BHRRERETIEE 1608 2 NEE
RAMBEERE

BEETEEMEE2016F12 A3 B IEFEIRMNE
AR B (20154F : 4%) - IMANFE R T kB HIRR

B o
/Tn



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last four financial years is set out
on page 160.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

In order to ensure that direct competition does not develop
between the Group and each of Mr. Tian and Smart IC
Limited (“Controlling Shareholders”)'s other activities, our
Controlling Shareholders have entered into the Deed of Non-
competition. Under the Deed of Non-competition, each of
our Controlling Shareholders had undertaken to the Company
(for ourselves and for the benefit of our subsidiaries) that, save
for the Retained Business (as defined in the Prospectus), they
will not, and they will use their best endeavours to procure
that their respective close associates (except any members of
the Group) will not, whether directly or indirectly (including
through anybody corporate, partnership, joint venture or
other contractual arrangement and for projects or otherwise)
or as principal or agent, and whether on their own account
or with each other or in conjunction with or on behalf of any
person, firm or company or through any entities (except in
or through any member of the Group), carry on, engage,
participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services
to or otherwise be involved in any business (the “Restricted
Business”) which is in competition with the business of any
member of the Group, the details of which are set out in the
Prospectus.
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Under the Deed of Non-competition, our Controlling
Shareholders have, among others, (i) undertaken, in the
situation when our Controlling Shareholders or their respective
close associates identify any new business opportunity relating
to the Restricted Business (“Business Opportunity”) to refer
such Business Opportunity to the Company; (i) undertaken not
to pursue such Business Opportunity unless our independent
non-executive Directors decline the Business Opportunity and
do not veto the pursuit of such Business Opportunity by our
Controlling Shareholders; and (iii) Mr. Tian granted an option
for the Company to purchase all of his shareholding interest in
SMC Taiwan (as defined in the Prospectus), and/or the assets or
other interests of SMC Taiwan and/or any new business similar
to our core business which has been developed, operated
or owned (whether directly or indirectly) by Mr. Tian, or any
companies controlled (whether directly or indirectly) by him.
For further details, please refer to the Prospectus — “Relationship
with Our Controlling Shareholders”.

Mr. Tian and Smart IC Limited have confirmed their compliance
with the Non-Competition Undertaking throughout the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2016. The independent
non-executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance
with the Deed of Non-Competition by the Mr. Tian and Smart
IC Limited and are satisfied that they have complied with the
undertakings.

LOCK-UP UNDERTAKINGS TO HONG KONG
STOCK EXCHANGE

The Controlling Shareholders have provided undertakings
to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to which the
shareholdings of the Controlling Shareholders are subject to
lock-up undertakings from the Listing Date to the ending on
the date which is 12 months from the Listing Date.

Mr. Wong Tsz Leung and Insight Limited have provided
undertakings to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
which the shareholdings of the Mr. Wong Tsz Leung and Insight
Limited are subject to lock-up undertakings from the Listing
Date to the ending on the date which is six months from the
Listing Date.
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Further details of the above lock-up undertakings are set out
in the section “Underwriting — Underwriting Arrangements
and Expenses — Hong Kong Public Offer- Undertakings given
to the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules” of the
Company’s Prospectus.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and reserves of the Company
on page 73 to 75 and note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations in the aggregate amount of approximately
US$129,000.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the aggregate amount of purchase from the
Group's five largest suppliers was approximately 95.1% of the
Group's total purchases, while the purchases from the Group's
largest supplier was approximately 77.1% of the Group's total
purchases.

During the year, the aggregate amount of sales to the Group's
five largest customers was approximately 60.5% of the Group's
total revenue, while the sales to the Group's largest customer
was approximately 26.1% of the Group's total revenue.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any shareholder
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interests in
the Group's five largest supplier or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this Directors’ report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Weidong
Mr. Wong Tsz Leung
Mr. Liu Hongbing
Mr. Xie Yi

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tang Ming Je
Mr. Zheng Gang
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
all the Directors will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “AGM"), and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of
whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

Each of the Executive Directors had entered into a service
contract with the Company pursuant to which they agreed
to act as Executive Directors for a term of three years with
effect from 7 October 2016, which shall be renewed as
determined by the Board or the Shareholders of the Company.
The appointment of each of the Executive Directors may be
terminated by either party by giving at least three months’
written notice to the other.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a term of three years commencing from
7 October 2016, which shall be renewed as determined by the
Board or the Shareholders of the Company. The appointment
of each of the Independent Non-executive Directors may be
terminated by either party giving at least three months’ written
notice to the other.

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has with the Group an unexpired service
contact which is not determined by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of
our Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO;
or are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are as
follows:

EERROREBERDVESZR KR

MR2016F12A31H0 » EEHARBEETHRAER
RAR B AR EE(EE R EHLEEES]
([FHERHBEED ) EXVER)BRRD - BEKH &
BEHF - AN IRIEE S R EKMIZ 35214
AHETEHELMOEERAR  REBEHN TR
BIff 2+ K E AR E B EITESFR HMIZESTA
([HBEESF R ) i&7B NS AN A ) R B 3 AT RO A 2 Sk
BT

Approximate

Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares held percentage
EEHR ERME FrERMEE AR H
Mr. Tian Weidong Interest in a controlled corporation 262,500,000 (L) 52.5%
HERLEN S AEER
Mr. Wong Tsz Leung® Interest in a controlled corporation 112,500,000 (L) 22.5%
EFREAE S AEE R
Notes: W

1) Smart IC Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Tian Weidong. Therefore, Mr.
Tian is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Smart IC Limited.

(2) Insight Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wong Tsz Leung. Therefore, Mr.
Wong is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Insight Limited.

(L) represents long positions.

Saved as disclosed in this report, as at 31 December 2016,
none of the Directors nor their associates had any interests or
short positions in any share, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, to
which the Company, or its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which the any Director or
the Director’s connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end or at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Non-Competition
Undertaking” on pages 31 to 32 of this report, during the
year ended 31 December 2016, none of the Directors has an
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the articles of associates of the Company, every
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director, Auditor or other officer of the Company in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is
given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The company has arranged Directors’ liability insurance policy
to protect the Directors against potential costs and liability
arising from claims brought against the Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of this report, the Group has no subsequent
event after 31 December 2016 which required disclosure.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s operations are conducted on a global basis
through its direct or indirect subsidiaries. Details of the
subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2016 are set
out in note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2016,
there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or
its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARE

As at 31 December 2016, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than a Director or a chief executive of
the Company) have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO:

BE  HEIEE LWES

Bt EEZE2016F12831 8 IEHIE - AAFE
HENBARMEREE  HEXELNARA LHE
%0

S

EFRRRRBR G RAABR G 2 Em kKR

R2016%F 128318 » MESZFA - WAL (ES
IARRNBEBITHRABRINHBBELRARAA
RIEEEF R SR EXVEEE G AT HEFEZE
Az I A SARREN D 2 B SOR B ¢

Approximate

Number of shareholding

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares held percentage

RER &R REEME RGO EE REBAE D

Smart IC Limited® Beneficial owner 262,500,000 (L) 52.5%
EmEAA

Insight Limited® Beneficial owner 112,500,000 (L) 22.5%
EnEAA

Notes:

(@) Smart IC Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Tian Weidong. Therefore, Mr.
Tian is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Smart IC Limited.

(2) Insight Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wong Tsz Leung. Therefore, Mr.
Wong is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Insight Limited.

(L represents long position

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the
Company had not been notified by any persons who had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall under the provisions of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO to be disclosed to the Company,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance (including for the
provision of services) with any member of the Group as
the contracting party and in which any of the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates possessed direct
or indirect substantial interests, and which was still valid on 31
December 2016 or any time during such year and related to
the business of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had
conducted continuing connected transactions with Smart-Core
Technology Co. Limited ("SMC Taiwan"”), a company owned
as to 90% by Mr. Tian Weidong, our executive Director and
Controlling Shareholder. The Group had supplied to SMC
Taiwan IC components and the amount of supply transactions
between the Group and SMC Taiwan during the year ended 31
December 2016 were as follows:
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 2016 31 December 2015

BZE20165F B Z2015%F

12A318ILLFE  12A31HLSFE

usD’000 uSD’000

FET FET

Amount of supply by the Group AEBEHERE 178 203

The above transactions were carried out on normal commercial
terms and the consideration payable was determined based
on arms’ length negotiations between the parties and
with reference to the price offered to independent simillar
customers. Such transactions were fully exempted under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 30 to
the financial statements prepared under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards also constituted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules required to be disclosed in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of
Listing Rules in respect of the above connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions.

EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

On 19 September 2016, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (“Share Award Scheme”) and conditionally approved
and adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”).
As at 31 December 2016, no award or option had been granted
or agreed to be granted by the Company pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme and Share Option Scheme respectively.

Share Option Scheme

Details of the Share Option Scheme (which became effective
on the Listing Date) are set out as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to incentivise
and reward the ESOS Eligible Persons (as defined below)
for their contribution to the Group and to align their
interests with that of the Company so as to encourage
them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board (including any committee or delegate of
the Board appointed by the Board to perform any of
its functions pursuant to the rules of the Share Option
Scheme) may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant
an option to subscribe for such number of Shares as the
Board may determine to an employee (whether full time
or part-time) or a director of a member of the Group or
associated companies of the Company (“ESOS Eligible
Persons”).
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(c)

Maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes (the "Other Schemes”) of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 50,000,000 shares (representing
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this report.) (the “ESOS Mandate Limit"). Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and any Other Schemes of the Company will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the ESOS
Mandate Limit.

The Board may, with the approval of the Shareholders
in general meeting, refresh the ESOS Mandate Limit
provided that the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any Other Schemes
of the Company under the ESOS Mandate Limit as
refreshed must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
as at the date on which the Shareholders approve the
refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any Other Schemes of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the relevant scheme, or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the ESOS
Mandate Limit as “refreshed”. The Board may, with the
approval of the Shareholders in general meeting, grant
options to any ESOS Eligible Person or ESOS Eligible
Persons specifically identified by them which would cause
the ESOS Mandate Limit to be exceeded. The Company
shall send to the Shareholders a circular containing the
information required under the Listing Rules for the
purpose of seeking the approval of the Shareholders.

At any time, the maximum number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and not yet exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any Other Schemes of the Company to
ESOS Eligible Persons must not exceed 30% of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time.

(c)
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(d)

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall be adjusted, in such manner
as the auditors of the Company or independent financial
adviser appointed by the Board shall certify in writing to
the Board to be fair and reasonable, in the event of any
alteration in the capital structure of the Company whether
by way of capitalisation of profits or reserves, rights issue,
consolidation or subdivision of shares, or reduction of
the share capital of the Company, provided that no such
adjustment shall be made in the event of an issue of
Shares as consideration in respect of a transaction.

As at the date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is 50,000,000 Shares, representing 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Individual

No options shall be granted to any ESOS Eligible Person
under the Share Option Scheme which, if exercised,
would result in such ESOS Eligible Person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of Shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of Shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding Options)
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
offer of such options, exceeds 1% of the Shares in issue at
such date.

Any further grant of options to an ESOS Eligible Person
in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the approval
of the Shareholders in general meeting with such ESOS
Eligible Person and his close associates (or if such ESOS
Eligible Person is a connected person, his associates)
abstaining from voting. The Company must send a circular
to the Shareholders disclosing the identity of the ESOS
Eligible Person in question, the number and terms of the
options to be granted (and options previously granted to
such ESOS Eligible Person) and such other information
required under the Listing Rules.
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(e)

(f)

The number and terms (including the exercise price) of
the options to be granted to such ESOS Eligible Person
must be fixed before the Shareholders’ approval and the
date of the Board meeting approving such further grant
shall be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
determining the exercise price of the options.

Acceptance of an Offer of Options

An offer of options shall be open for acceptance for such
period (not exceeding 30 days inclusive of, and from, the
date of offer) as the Board may determine and notify to
the ESOS Eligible Persons concerned provided that no
such offer shall be open for acceptance after the expiry
of the duration of the Share Option Scheme. An offer
of options not accepted within this period shall lapse.
An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of an option and such payment shall not be
refundable and shall not be deemed to be a part payment
of the exercise price.

Exercise Price

Subject to any adjustment made in respect of alteration
of share capital, the exercise price shall be such price as
determined by the Board and notified to an option-holder
and which shall not be less than the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of
offer of the option;

(i) the average of the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the option; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

(e)

(f)
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(9)

(h)

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date,
after which period no further options will be granted but
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to the exercise of any options granted prior thereto
which are at that time or become thereafter capable of
exercise under the Share Option Scheme, or otherwise
to the extent as may be required in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

Time of Vesting and Exercise of Options

Any option shall be vested on an option-holder
immediately upon his acceptance of the offer of options
provided that if any vesting schedule and/or conditions
are specified in the offer of the option, such option shall
only be vested on an option-holder according to such
vesting schedule and/or upon the fulfilment of the vesting
conditions (as the case may be). Any vested option which
has not lapsed and which conditions have been satisfied
or waived by the Board in its sole discretion may, unless
the Board determines otherwise in its absolute discretion,
be exercised at any time from the next business day after
the offer of options has been accepted. Any option which
remain unexercised shall lapse upon the expiry of the
option period, which period shall be determined by the
Board and shall not exceed ten years from the offer date
of the option (the “Option Period”).

An option shall be subject to such terms and conditions
(if any) as may be determined by the Board and specified
in the offer of the option, including any vesting schedule
and/or conditions, any minimum period for which any
option must be held before it can be exercised and/or
any performance target which needs to be achieved by
an option-holder before the option can be exercised. Any
terms and conditions determined by the Board must not
be contrary to the purpose of the Share Option Scheme
and must be consistent with such guidelines (if any) as
may be approved from time to time by the Shareholders.
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(i)

No option may be exercised in circumstances where such
exercise would, in the opinion of the Board, be in breach
of a statutory or regulatory requirement.

Restriction on the Time of Grant of Options

A grant of options may not be made after inside
information has come to our knowledge until such inside
information has been announced as required under the
Listing Rules. In particular, no option may be granted
during the period commencing one month immediately
preceding the earlier of:

() the date of the Board meeting (as such date is first
notified to the Stock Exchange in accordance with
the Listing Rules) for the approval of the Company’s
results for any year, half-year, quarterly or other
interim period (whether or not required under the
Listing Rules); and

(i)  the deadline for the Company to publish an
announcement of the results for any year, or half-
year under the Listing Rules, or quarterly or any
other interim period (whether or not required under
the Listing Rules), and ending on the date of the
results announcement. The period during which
no option may be granted will cover any period of
delay in the publication of a results announcement.

For further details on the Share Award Scheme, please
refer to section headed “Appendix IV — Statutory and
General Information — D. Employee Incentive Schemes - 2.
Share Option Scheme” of the Prospectus.

(i)
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Share Award Scheme

Details of the Share Award Seheme (which became effective on
19 September 2016 are set out as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Award Scheme

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to reward our
directors, senior managers and employees of the Group
("Eligible Persons”) for their hard work, contribution
and loyalty and align their interests with those of the
Shareholders.

(b) Duration of the Share Award Scheme

Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by the Board pursuant to the rules of the Share Award
Scheme, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing on 19
September 2016, after which period no further Awards (as
defined below) will be granted but the provisions of the
Share Award Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
to the extent necessary to give effect to the vesting of
any Awards granted prior to the expiration of the Share
Award Scheme, or otherwise to the extent as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme.

(c) Participants of the Share Award Scheme and Basis for
Determining the Eligibility of the Selected Participants

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute
discretion, select any Eligible Persons to participate in the
Share Award Scheme (“Selected Participants”), subject
to the terms and conditions set out in the Share Award
Scheme. In determining the Selected Participants, the
Board shall take into consideration matters including, but
without limitation, the present and expected contribution
of the relevant Selected Participants to the Group.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Maximum number of Shares that can be awarded

The Company shall not make any further grant of award
under the Share Award Scheme (“Award”) which will
result in the number of Shares allotted and issued to or
acquired by the Trustee (as defined in the Prospectus)
amounting or exceeding 10% of the total number of
issued Shares from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each awardee

The maximum number of Award which may be granted to
a awardee but unvested under the Share Award Scheme
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued Shares
from time to time.

Appointment of Trustee

The Company will appoint trustee to assist with the
administration and vesting of the Awards granted
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme (“Trustee”) and will
enter into a trust deed with the Trustee that constitute a
trust to service the Share Award Scheme (“Trust”).

Settlement and/or Payment of Award

Upon the satisfaction of conditions including without
limitation, the vesting of the Award, the Board may at its
absolute discretion to either:

direct and procure the Trustee to release the Award
Shares to the Grantees by transferring the number
of Award Shares to the Grantees in such manner as
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
from time to time; or

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)
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ii. to the extent where it is in the reasonable opinion
of the Company not practicable for the Grantee to
receive the Award Shares, direct and procure the
Trustee to sell the number of Award Shares on such
dates and in such manner as the Board shall in its
absolute discretion determine and pay the Grantee
the proceeds arising from such sale based on the
Actual Selling Price of the Shares in cash as set out
in the vesting notice (“Vesting Notice”) to be sent
by the Company to the relevant Grantee prior to
any Vesting Date, in accordance with the procedure
set out in the Share Award Scheme.

For further details on the Share Award Scheme, please refer
to section headed “Appendix IV — Statutory and General
Information — D. Employee Incentive Schemes — 1. Share Award
Scheme” of the Prospectus.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
out by the Board of Directors, having regards to the positions,
duties and performance of the employees, together with the
comparable market practice. The emoluments of the Directors
are decided by remuneration committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

The articles of association of the Company and the relevant law
of the Cayman Islands do not entitle any Shareholder to any
pre-emptive right or other similar rights to subscribe for the
new shares on a pro-rata basis.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company has not entered
into any equity-linked agreements for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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SUFFICIENCY IN PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange
and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times and during the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2016 and up to the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders of the Company are unsure about the tax
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in,
or the exercise of any rights in relation to the Shares of the
Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 have been reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

AUDITOR

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants, who will retire and offer itself for re-appointment
at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution will be submitted to
the AGM to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Tian Weidong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has committed to maintain high corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that good
corporate governance, by adopting an effective management
accountability system and high standard of business ethnics,
can provide a framework that is essential to the Company’s
sustainable development and to safeguard the interests of
the Shareholders, suppliers, customers, employees and other
stakeholders.

The company has adopted the code provision as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance. Except for code provision A.2.1 as disclosed in
this report, the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions of the CG code during the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2016. The Company'’s corporate
governance practices are based on the principles, code
provisions and certain recommended best practices as set out
in the CG Code.

The Board will review and update the corporate governance
policy regularly to ensure the compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as standard
for dealings in securities of the Company for the Directors.
The Company has made specific query to the Directors, and
all Directors confirmed that they had fully complied with the
Model Code during the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2016.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven
members, of whom four are executive Directors and three are

independent non-executive Directors. Directors who held office
from the Listing Date and up to the date of this report are:
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Executive Directors

Mr. TIAN Weidong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WONG Tsz Leung (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LIU Hongbing

Mr. XIE Yi

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Ming Je
Mr. ZHENG Gang
Mr. WONG Hon Kit

The list of Directors and their roles and functions are posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and senior management” on pages
20 to 25 of this report. None of the Directors has any family,
financial or business relations with each other.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2016 and up to the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this annual report, the Board has complied with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules to have not less than
three independent non-executive Directors and at least one
of the independent non-executive Directors has the requisite
professional qualification in accounting or relevant financial
management experience. In addition, the Company has
complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules which stipulates
that the number of independent non-executive Directors
appointed by a listed company shall not be less than one third
of the Board.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic plans and key
policies of the Group; monitor the financial performance; review
the effectiveness of internal control system; risk management
and ensures good corporate governance and compliance with
regulatory requirements. It delegates the daily operations and
administration to the senior management with clear directions.
The board members are fully committed to their roles and have
acted in good faith to maximise the value of the Company and
safeguard the interests of the stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Report

TERERRE

BITES

&R (L EHRTTBAER)
BENRELE(EEAFE)
EARES e

WHETE

BYFHITES

SRE L
EpS
mEAEE

EELENEAGNBETINALRE R FE
Ut EEREEEN BN AREF20HIE25HE
ENEREERE ] - SEFRUZABEER
BB MIEREGRE

B T EEEE2016F12A31A REEHEARE
WANREBERATEEY e —EHET TR
BIZE3.10MIEX3.10QEBBE IR =B B IE

WITES ARV BBUIENTEZREHELE
ETEEERREAHEEVEEREERZRE -
B ANARNEST EMRAIEII0AKEBLETA
RIAZTEEZE I PR =D 2 — MBI IEHTE
BIZHE o

EFerATRIASERRBEBAELTIEREK
ERMBRE R ABEERRNERE B
REREENERRINECEEAERLBTEE
BE - BEFRFELBWMETHATEEREEER
RETSAEEE EFeNEBAETREZR
B WEHTE  RARARIESEKNEBLRER
sARREA TR

SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED /i E 2B R A

51



52

Corporate Governance Report
TRERBRE

Board meetings

The Board meets four times each year. Between scheduled
regular meetings, Directors may approve various matters
by way of the passing of written resolutions and additional
meetings may be arranged if required. Notice of each regular
Board meeting will be given to all members at least 14 days
before the meeting. Agenda and all the relevant information is
normally dispatched to the Directors three days in advance of
the relevant meetings.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for the Board meeting and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations regarding Board meetings are complied
with. Each director may request the inclusion of items in the
agenda. Directors considered having conflict of interests are
required to declare their interests and abstain from voting for
the relevant resolution.

Minutes of the meetings are recorded in detail and draft
minutes are circulated to all Directors for review and comment
within a reasonable time after the Board meetings are held. All
the minutes of the meeting are properly kept by the Company
Secretary after approval and are available to all Directors for
inspection.

The attendance records of the Directors at the Board meeting
held during the period from the Listing Date and 31 December
2016 are set out below:
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Board Meetings General Meeting

attended attended™
Name of Directors qHEpA HEEESEERE  HERRAZRE"
Executive Directors PITEE

Mr. Tian Weidong HEREE 1/1 N/A
AN
Mr. Wong Tsz Leung BRERELE Al N/A
A
Mr. Liu Hongbing BT ot 1/1 N/A
AN
Mr. Xie Yi HEILE 1/1 N/A
A

Independent non-executive Directors B HHTEE
Mr. Tang Ming Je AT Rt 1/1 N/A
A
Mr. Zheng Gang fiibie s 1/1 N/A
AN A
Mr. Wong Hon Kit mEGRRE 1/1 N/A
N A
(1) From the Listing Date to 31 December 2016, no general meeting was (1) B BE#EE2016F12831 B [F W EEITR R AL -

held.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive officer should
be segregated and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The Company deviates from this provision in that Mr. Tian
Weidong currently performs these two roles. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief
executive officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group.
The Board considers that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired and this
structure will enable the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively. The Board will continue
to review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer of the Company at a time
when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account the
circumstances of the Group as a whole.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The procedures for appointing and re-electing Directors are
set out in the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”). The appointment of a new director
must be approved by the Board. The nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship taking into account
factors such as appropriate professional knowledge, industry
experience, personal ethics, integrity, personal skills, gender,
age, cultural and educational background.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, at every
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.
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The Company has entered into service agreements with
the executive Director, and appointment letters with the
independent non-executive Directors. The tenure of all
Directors is 3 years.

Independent non-executive Director

Since the Listing Date, the Company at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to have independent
non-executive Directors who represent at least one-third of
the Board, and at least one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from all independent non-executive
Directors their confirmation of independence in accordance
to the independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the terms of independence guidelines.

All of the independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years and are subjected to retirement by
rotation once every three years.

Directors’ training and development

All Directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as
a director of the Company and of the conduct and business
activities of the Company. The Company is responsible for
arranging suitable training for its Directors. The Company has
arranged for Directors to attend a training session which place
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director, as well as the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements. All
the Directors had also participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by reading materials
regarding regulatory updates and corporate governance
matters.
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Board diversity policy

The Board has a board diversity policy and the Company
believes that the diversity will support the attainment of the
Company'’s objective and enhance the value of the Company.
The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural, educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and other qualities. Nomination
committee of the Company will review the board diversity
policy regularly to ensure its continued effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties according to the code provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code, which includes:

(1) developing and reviewing the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group;

(2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
Directors and employees; and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has set up three committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “"Remuneration Committee”) and Nomination Committee
for overseeing particular aspect of the Company. The terms of
reference of these committees are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company (i.e. Mr. Wong Hon Kit,
Mr. Zheng Gang and Mr. Tang Ming Je) and Mr. Wong Hon
Kit, who has professional qualification in accounting and
financial management expertise, is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

1. To review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

2. To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor;

3. To oversee the internal audit system of the Company and
its implementation;

4. To review the Group's financial controls, risk management,
internal control systems, financial and accounting policies
and practices;

5. To review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to Management
about accounting records, financial accounts or systems
of control and Management's response;

6. To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance, and make
recommendations to the Board and report to the Board
on matters; and

7.  To review the corporate governance report disclosed in
our annual report.

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2016, no Audit
Committee meeting was held.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive
Director (Mr. Tian Weidong) and three independent non-
executive Directors (i.e. Mr. Wong Hon Kit, Mr. Zheng Gang
and Mr. Tang Ming Je) and is chaired by Mr. Zheng Gang. The
major duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

1.

To make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and Senior Management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals
and objectives;

To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and Senior
Management;

To consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and Senior Management and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

To review and approve the compensation for the loss or
termination of office or appointment executive directors
and senior management;

To review and approve the compensation arrangements
with regard to the dismissal or removal of Directors due
to their misconduct; and

To ensure no Director or their contacts determine
by themselves, or be involved in determining, their
remuneration.

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2016, no Remuneration
Committee meeting was held.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of three members and
is chaired by the executive Director, Mr. Tian Weidong. The
remaining two members are all independent non-executive
Directors (i.e. Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Mr. Tang Ming Je). The
major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

1. To review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) required of the
Board at least annually and making recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy

2. To identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Directors and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship

3. To make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive

4. To assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2016, no Nomination
Committee meeting was held.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 to ensure that the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the Group'’s financial position and other
financial disclosures. The Company provided all member of
the Board with monthly updates on the Group's performance,
financial positions and prospects to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements. The statement by the auditors of the Company
regarding their responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is set out on the Independence
Auditor’s Report on pages 63 to 69 of this annual report.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The audit committee monitors the audit and non-audit services
rendered to the Group by the external auditor and ensures that
the engagement of external auditor in non-audit services will
not impair its audit independence or objectivity.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fees in respect
of the audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

TERERRE

BB ET A &

BZL B R ERMINEZEE RA S B H AR
FNOERZ B RTS - WHER R A SNS A BED R IFAZ L
R T EREELETVBLEREEM -

HZE2016F12A3181EFE - BAEE « =M
BETRITTRI A EEREZHE M IR ERE 2 E A
PN

Fee
EAR
US$'000
TET
Audit services =R 165
Non-audit services: FERZBRT
Reporting accountant for the Company’s listing ~ FAAAR] E MR HHE 6D 258
Tax advisory IS A 118
Risk management and Internal control review R LR B IR N (A R L 35
576
Risk management and internal control [ B B B Ik R R B4
The main features of the risk management and internal control  [EBRE IR J& A FL B R Ate) F 2N AL RIRAUBMTEY
systems are to provide a clear governance structure, policies  ‘B/AZR1E ~ R &%if%&ﬁﬂﬂ%%” AR Bh AR S
and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate ~ BEEEHEXBZERER
the Group to manage its risks across business operations.
The Group has established a risk management framework, ~AEECHIEREREREMER  HEFES FX

which consists of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee
and the Senior Management. The Board of Directors shall be
responsible for the determination of the nature and extent
of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives. The Board of Directors acknowledges its overall
responsibility for monitoring the Group's risk management and
internal control system and reviewing their overall effectiveness.
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The Group has an internal audit function and has formulated
and adopted Risk Management Policy in providing direction in
identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks. At least
on an annual basis, the Senior Management identifies risks
that would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's
objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks
according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and
risk owners are then established for those risks considered to
be significant.

The Board and the Audit Committee continue to evaluate the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
in the Group's accounting and financial reporting functions.
The Group has engaged an independent professional advisor
to assist the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee
in ongoing monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. Deficiencies in the design
and implementation of internal controls are identified and
recommendations are proposed for improvement. Significant
internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors on a timely basis to
ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.

Risk management report and internal control report are
submitted to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
at least once a year. The Board of Directors had performed
annual review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, including but
not limited to the Group’s ability to cope with its business
transformation and changing external environment; the scope
and quality of management’s review on risk management and
internal control systems; result of internal audit work; the extent
and frequency of communication with the Board of Directors in
relation to result of risk and internal control review; significant
failures or weaknesses identified and their related implications;
and status of compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board of
Directors considers the Group's risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group will
disclose inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the
“safe harbours” provisions under the SFO and satisfy the
conditions. Before the information is fully disclosed to the
public, the Group will ensure that the information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose
the information to the public. The Group is committed to
ensure that information contained in announcements are not
false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact in view of presenting
information in a clear and balanced way, which requires equal
disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Kai Cheong was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on 16 March 2016. Mr. Lo is responsible for
raising corporate governance-related suggestions to the Board,
and ensuring compliance with policies and procedures of the
Board of Directors, laws, rules and regulations applicable.
The biographical details of Mr. Lo is set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors and senior management” on page 25 of this
annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Lo took no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

The amended and restated Articles of Association was adopted
by the Company on 19 September 2016 and effective on the
Listing Date. The Articles of Association has not changed since
the Listing Date to the year ended 31 December 2016.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations. The
Company also recognizes the importance of transparency
of information disclosure and timely communication with
shareholders by different channels.

The general meetings of the company provide a direct channel
for the shareholders to communicate with the Company. The
Company shall in each year hold a general meeting as its
annual general meeting and the annual general meeting shall
be called by not less than 21 days’ notice in writing. The notice
convening an annual general meeting shall specify the meeting
as such, and the notice convening a meeting to pass a special
resolution shall specify the intention to propose the resolution as
a special resolution.

All general meetings other than annual general meetings shall
be called extraordinary general meetings (“EGM"). Any two or
more members of the Company, at the date of the deposit of
written requisition holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the rights of voting
at general meetings, shall at all times have the right to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must be deposited at the Company’s
principal office in Hong Kong. If the Board does not within
21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene the EGM to be held within a further 21 days,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene the EGM, but any EGM shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions or requests for
information to the Directors or management through “Contact
Us” section in the Company'’s website (www.smart-core.com.hk)
or in writing and sent by post to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong or by email to smg@smart-core.com.
hk.

The Company will publish the Company’s information in an
accurate and timely manner to improve the transparency of
information disclosure. The latest development, announcements
and press in relation to the Company are available on the
Company'’s website (www.smart-core.com.hk) for investors.
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Smart-Core Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 70 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

BEETER

RRETSHEIREE S B XHE

T2 - BEE I ERRIEHERER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter
RRESSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEETHETRNMEERRETSE

Recoverability of trade receivables

B 5B IRR 7K e 1

We identified the recoverability of the trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as

a whole and the judgment associated with assessing
their recoverability.

BEEERE HRUGIA 2 AT BN ER AR E FIA -
T R SRR SR A I TSR C B E E ARG EA]
Y BIE Ko 2 HHf -

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the
Group's trade receivables was US$56,500,000. Details
relating to the Group's trade receivables are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
K2016512A310 - EEEE 5 REFIE 2 REER
56,500,000 7T - FHEEEEE HEUGIA Z FHIBEIRER
B BREME6

At the end of each reporting period, management
assessed the recoverability of such balance based on
the financial position of the customers and identified
any impairment indicators. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
affect the carrying amounts of receivables and material
impairment loss may arise.

REREHR - BEEREEREP MR E R
ZAWE R BRI ETR - EFRHEREGTHEE
2 FRAEZERBTERWIAZEREE - BIFJEghR
BEAREREE -

Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of trade
receivables included:

BEERE SRR AT BT 2 2B -

J Testing the key controls on management
approval on granting credit to third parties and
the processes that the management performed
in relation to the impairment assessment of trade
receivables;
WAEEEERME=TREZTZEEREENLE
B EREHEE S RGBT 22

J Making inquiries with management on their bases
and assessment in relation to the recoverability
of trade receivables;

SAERTE SRR AR EE 2 B ERE IR EE
HE#

J Performing company and litigation search of
debtors with material balances to identify any
additional indicators on financial difficulties; and
IR ERGEHRZBEBAET AR RFARER - I
BRI SR EE 2 EREMPIR &

J Evaluating management’s assessment by taking
into account many factors such as any overdue
receivables, financial information of individual
debtors and any subsequent settlement received.
ZREAHEKER -« ERERAZHBER R
EMEEDWRERSTEZAER LEBE 2 (b5t
HEITRHE ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
vE AR 8 T S

BREESEH(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEETETRNMEERRETER

Valuation of inventories

FERZ1GE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter due to its significant balance and the estimation
associated with the determination of their net
realisable value. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of the Group's inventory was US$31,908,000. °
“EH—rffZﬁTﬁE&E‘JﬁE@ﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁ CUETIERREX

BEHRARETFE A SRR E W K25t ° 1020165F12 A
318 - EEEFE ZKRAEEA31,908,000% 7T ©

Details relating to the Group's inventories and its
accounting policies are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BHEREFE A BRZFEHY
15 °

Sea=ipsEr el

There is also judgment involved in assessing the level
of inventory provision required in respect of slow
moving inventory. Therefore, there is a risk that slow
moving inventory has not been adequately provided
for
%fﬁ/—%iﬁﬁ S PR B B K F R AL HIE - B
RHEFERERE TR AR

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of inventories
included:
BERFREZMEERNTIRRFEE

Identifying and assessing aged and obsolete
inventories when attending inventory counts;

SEFERIE B MBS RREFE

Checking the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning and the level of inventories write-
offs during the year; and

BB EFERE O ERIE N FATEMEENRT
K

Sample testing the management’s assessment of
inventory net realisable value and the provision
in place for slow moving and obsolete inventory.
HR R B I E HF B A 23R FE 2 A A RS 88
NREFE 2B -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

] Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

] Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

] Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

] Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Au Chun Hing.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
21 March 2017

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEaRAEMEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

2016 2015
Notes Us$‘000 Us$'000
i3 FErx TFET
Revenue A 6 669,896 485,371
Cost of sales SHERK A (638,279) (463,145)
Gross profit ES 31,617 22,226
Other income Hibug A 7 2,171 2,001
Net foreign exchange loss HNE B RF R (2,337) (724)
Research and development expenses EEER (2,429) (2,129)
Administrative expenses 1THE (6,209) (6,817)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (4,874) (2,608)
Listing expenses tHEM (2,432) (1,157)
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEENSER (3,586) (1,750)
Profit before tax BRBE A0 A 7 8 11,921 9,042
Income tax expense FISHE M 10 (2,494) (2,140)
Profit for the year FEFHE 9,427 6,902
Other comprehensive (expenses) Hit2mE(EA) WA
income
Items that may be reclassified B e EF 7 E 1B am
subsequently to profit or loss: HE :
Exchange difference arising on BMEBINERHER =58
translation of foreign operations (82) 15
Fair value loss on available-for-sale A ERENAFEEX
investments (112) (267)
Total comprehensive income for FEXHIAELE
the year 9,233 6,650
Profit for the year attributable to: P ATEAEFERE :
Owners of the Company AN/NEIE T =N 9,279 6,096
Non-controlling interests Eealiig 148 806
9,427 6,902
Total comprehensive income for DLTRATEGEEE
the year attributable to: Z2HEHEA :
Owners of the Company NNREER A 9,088 5,869
Non-controlling interests E el 145 781
9,233 6,650
Earnings per share, BREF
basic (US cents) EX(X7) 12 2.322 1.806

2016 ANNUAL REPORT & [E R4



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

maE PR R

As at 31 December 2016
M2016F12H31H

2016 2015
Notes US$‘000 US$°000
HiaE FET FZETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB LR 13 429 478
Available-for-sale investments HHERE 14 7,772 5,825
Deposits, prepayments and other %4 - B IE R EMEL
receivables =18 17 2,869 2,802
11,070 9,105
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 15 31,908 17,863
Trade receivables B S EMGRIA 16 56,500 84,222
Deposits, prepayments and other Be - RAFURREA
receivables FE U kI8 17 2,718 1,192
Amounts due from directors FEWE = RIE 19 - 381
Amounts due from related companies FE U BBt N B AR IR 20 - 2,099
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 21 32,488 6,359
Bank balances and cash RITHEBNRIRS 21 27,831 4,137
151,445 116,253
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade payables B HENIA 22 68,669 46,281
Other payables and accrued charges Hih IR ETER 23 13,640 11,264
Amount due to a director EN—REEHIE 19 - 600
Dividend payable FEfTAR B = 4,000
Tax liabilities HBaE 813 3,093
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 22,553 36,889
105,675 102,127
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERH 45,770 14,126
56,840 23,231
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma PR R

As at 31 December 2016
2016F12831H

2016 2015
Notes US$‘000 US$°000
BiaE FEx FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRf#E

Share/paid-in capital A, B UCE AR 25 5 1,269
Reserves i 56,835 19,523

Equity attributable to owners of RABGEA NEIEER
the Company 56,840 20,792
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R 33 - 2,439
56,840 23,231

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 159 were HNET0E 1598 7 454 B8 3RMN2017E3 218
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on EEEolEREETIR  WHTHESKRER

21 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: = .
Tian Weidong Wong Tsz Leung
HER EER
Director Director
EF EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAEE
Share/ Investment Non-
paid-in Share Other  Statutory  Exchange revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserves  reserve  reserves  earnings Total  interests equity
Bx/ R& FER

BhER RORE EtRE  iERE  MERE  EGRE  2REA ait Bi ER4
US§000  US$'000  US$'000 - US$'000 - US$'000 - US$000 - US$000 - US$'000  US$'000  USS'000
FET FET FEr FET F£T T£1 FET FET F£T £
(notea) (note b)
(hits)  (Wib)

At 1 January 2015 R2015E1 818 1,269 - - 12 21 11 17210 18523 2,058 20,581
Profit for the year FEME - - - - = = 6,0% 6,09% 806 6,902
Exchange difference arisngon ~ [EX£%

translation - - - - 14 - = 14 1 15
Fair value loss on available-for- A HERER)

sale investrments NEEER - - - - - (241) - (24 (26) (267)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FRERRIFIER

income recognised for the 2ERAES

year - - - - 14 (241) 6,09 5,869 781 6,650
Transfer to statutory reserves  EREETRME - - - 12 = = (12) = = =
Issue of new shares during the ~ FRE{THR(R

year (note ¢ (note 25) Hiitc)

(Hi25) - - - - - - - - - -

Dividend recognised as BREARAR S

distribution (note 11) (W) - - - - - - (3,600 (3,600) (400) (4,000)
At 31 December 2015 20155

12R318 1,269 - - 24 35 (230) 19,694 20,792 2439 23231

Profitfor the year ERHE - - - - - - M 92 148 9427
Exchange difference arisingon ~ [EX £

translation - - - - (80) - - (80) 2 (82)
Fair value loss on available-for- T ER AN

sale investments NEEER - - - - - (111) - (111) (1) (112)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERRBR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAEE
Share/ Investment Non-
paid-in Share Other  Statutory Exchange revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserves  reserve  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
B/ k& FER

BhEr  ROGE EtRE  iERE  NERE  EfRE  9ERA fit Bi Ea4
US§000  US$000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000 - US$000 - US$000 - US$'000  US$'000  USS'000
FET F£7 FET FET FE£T T£1 FET FET FET £
(notea)  (note b)
(hida)  (hib)

Profit and total comprehensive ~ FRHEREIFIER
income recognised for the PERAES

year - - - - (80) (111) 9.219 9,088 145 9,233
Tranfer to statutory reserve ~ EEZETEE - - - 49 - = (49) = = S
Issue of new shares on 2016528248

24 February 2016 (note 25) BIERG

(iit23) - 0514 - - - - - 0514 - 20514
Capitalisation issue (note 25) A
(Wi2s) 4 (4) = = = - - - - -
Issue of new shares on #2016£10A78
7 October 2016 (note 25) BIHRG
(Hiit25) 1 2974 - - - - - 9747 - 947
Transaction costs attributable to  Z/TTR e/,

issue of new shares THKA = 231) = = = = = 2,31) = 231
Adustments arising fromthe S EEEEAR

Group Reorganisation HE (1,269) - 1,802 - - - - 533 (2,584)  (2,051)
Deemed distribution to RARERRRE

Controlling Shareholders el il

(as defined in note 2 i) - - - - - - (18,463)  (18,463) - (18463)
Dividend recognised as EREEAEM

distribution (note 11) REHz1) - (3,000 = = - = - (3,000 - (3,000
At 31 December 2016 20165

12A318 5 44,885 1,802 73 (45) (341) 10,461 56,840 - 56,840
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Notes:

(b)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Other reserve represents (i) the combined share capital of Smart-Core
International Company Limited and Smart-Core Cloud Limited acquired by
the Company at the time of the Group Reorganisation (as defined in note
2); (ii) the difference between the amounts by which the non-controlling
interest was adjusted and the consideration paid to acquire the additional
interests in subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC is required to transfer 10%
of its profit after tax as per statutory financial statements to the reserve
funds (including the general reserve fund and enterprise development
fund where appropriate). The general reserve fund is discretionary when
the fund balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the subsidiary
and can be used to make up for previous years’ losses or, expand the
existing operations or can be converted into additional capital of the
subsidiary. The enterprise development fund can only be used for
development and is not available for distribution to shareholder.

The amount is presented as zero as rounded to the nearest thousand.

Hist -

SEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

HibEER - ()ARAIRNEEEACER LI E2) B 4eis
MEEREARARRCEEARIBNAGEA : (i)JE
PR R ) S R S AR B R KRR I B X R AV BRI ME R T S
MREZRNZERE -

RIEPEARAME ([ FEDBEER - AEERSTEK
TP A RIZRIZATE B TS R R AR B4R MBI A0 10%88 1
ERFEEC(BE—REBESROEERES(WER))
—RFEESEESHRTEDIME QR M EARR50%E
AIRERAR B BEFENER  EARA XKL SRS
BAZINERARMNBINER - CRERESERERRM
& PMEDIRTER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZE20165F12A31H ILEE

2016 2015
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KR
Profit before tax BR7% B A 11,921 9,042
Adjustments for: HATEEELFE -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB REREITE
equipment 165 257
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEEFSER 3,586 1,750
Allowance for doubtful debts R 14 183
Allowance for inventories GFERE 13 248
Dividend and interest income from A EIRE MR E RFLE
available-for-sale investments WA (300) (180)
Interest income from life insurance SR B EWA
policies (118) (109)
Bank interest income RITHEWA (14) (13)
Operating cash flows before movements &iE& & EFRTNKL LIRS
in working capital mE 15,267 11,178
Increase in inventories FE# (13,939) (1,745)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 2 5 fE I GRIE R A (38 10) 29,769 (42,818)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and B - TARFRIR K H bR YK
other receivables TR N (1,377) (116)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from  JEUREFEE A B R IER A (32 400)
related companies 769 (247)
Increase in trade payables B 5 e RIEE N 20,200 21,231
Increase in other payables and accrued H fib e~ 3008 N e T & R 1L N
charges 2,199 4,712
Cash from (used in) operations reEmE(FR)RE 52,888 (7,805)
Income tax paid BERFEH (4,774) (1,229)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REFHHEFRA)REFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 48,114 (9,034)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

2016 2015
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Placement of pledged bank deposits EFEEARITER (33,108) (8,705)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments & Al it HEKRE (2,718) (4,356)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  WEKREE
equipment (134) (162)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R ERRITIFR 6,979 8,201
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- & A {1 & 1% & A5 508
sale investments 656 645
Dividend and interest income of available- AJ{it &% &I B K FI S
for-sale investments WA 300 180
Interest received BHFIE 14 13
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETEHFTAREFE
ACTIVITIES (28,011) (4,184)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Fund arising from trade receivables MiEREMRIEE 5 EIEIA
factored with recourse rEEES 265,069 224,728
New bank borrowings raised MELNRITEE 170,344 101,389
Proceeds from issuance of new shares BTN RS RUR 50,261 =
Advances from directors REEZESHRK 5,011 3,657
Advances from related companies PNE]Ez) VNG =k P 1,375 434
Repayment of trade receivables factored  [Ei2HiBRIEMNIRIEE 5 U
with recourse TRIF (285,886) (211,135)
Repayment of borrowings BEER (163,863) (96,197)
Deemed distribution to shareholders and 18 &RIREVEL B9 IR R UEE
payment to acquire additional interest M8 R RRIMER FI 3K
in subsidiaries (20,514) -
Repayment to directors MERER (8,230) (3,195)
Dividend paid BERRE (4,000) =
Interest paid EANFE (3,586) (1,750)
Transaction costs on issue of shares BTN IR B KA (2,371) =
Repayment to related companies [r) R 1 R1E K (45) (2,328)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING BEEBMERESFHE
ACTIVITIES 3,565 15,603
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

2016 2015
US$°000 US$°000
FET FZETT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBSESEYILMNFE
EQUIVALENTS 23,668 2,385
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUOERESRESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 4,137 1,737
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  JNEME RS R T2 26 15
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERAERESEEY
END OF THE YEAR
Represented by bank balances and cash ~ BlR{745 84 RIRE 27,831 4,137

2016 ANNUAL REPORT & [E R4



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company and registered in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as combined and revised) of
the Cayman Islands on 22 October 2015. The Company
changed its name from “Smart-Core Cloud Group
Limited” to “Smart-Core Holdings Limited” with effect
from the passing of the special resolution by all of the
then shareholders of the Company on 8 August 2016.
The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) since 7 October 2016. Its controlling
shareholders are Smart IC Limited and Insight Limited,
both are private companies incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI"). Its ultimate controlling parties are
Mr. Tian Wei Dong (“Mr. Tian”) and Mr. Wong Tsz Leung
("Mr. Wong"), who are also the Executive Directors of
the Company. The addresses of registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company's subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
trading of electronics components.

The consolidated financial statements is presented in
United States Dollar ("US$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange, the companies now comprising
the Group underwent a group reorganisation (the “Group
Reorganisation”). Details of the Group Reorganisation
are set out in the Prospectus dated 27 September 2016
issued by the Company.

Prior to the group reorganisation, the trading of
electronic components was carried out by the subsidiaries
of Smart-Core Holdings Limited (“Smart-Core Samoa”),
the holding company of all entities now comprising the
Group which was incorporated in Samoa and beneficially
owned by Mr. Tian, Mr. Wong and Mr. Liu Hong Bing (“Mr.
Liu”) as to 60%, 30% and 10%, respectively. Smart-Core
Samoa is jointly controlled by Mr. Tian and Mr. Wong in
respect of the Group's business and all the group entities
now comprising the Group historically and throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015 (collectively be referred to
as the “Controlling Shareholders”). Smart-Core Samoa
does not form part of the Group.

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

—REH

RATNR2015FE10F 2B RERSEHE R
ALESE22E (1961 F E35ED + KR E RE
FERSHE MK AERRERAR -
ARRBEEEBHIEEEEEER R A
FEAINEEREGRAR] - B2016%8 A
SHAR A2 EEIRFRBERIIRZERE
HE e NATIRMDE B2016F 107 HAEE
EBBMARSGMERAR (BRI ERE
M o EPERRAR R ASmart IC Limited &ZInsight
Limited * M AERBER LS (| RBE L
B NAMKRIFLERT - ERKIERT A
AEREE(HEE ) REFEREE(EL
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Mk EE R T 2L E MBI RNEROAD
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Upon completion of the Group Reorganisation,
the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group on 24 February
2016. The Group Reorganisation involved incorporation
of the Company and its acquisition from Smart-Core
Samoa all shares of Smart-core International Company
Limited (“SMC International HK"”) and Smart-core
Cloud Limited (“SMC Cloud HK"”) from Smart-Core
Samoa for a total cash consideration of US$20,514,049
and US$1, respectively. This payment is regarded as
deemed distribution to the Controlling Shareholders to
the extent of the amount attributable of US$18,463,000
and the remainder as consideration for the acquisition
of the non-controlling interest in the subsidiaries. The
Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries
resulting from the Group Reorganisation is regarded as a
continuing entity, accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the principles
of merger accounting in accordance with Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") as if the
Company had always been the holding company of the
Group throughout the years ended 31 December 2016.
The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash
flows for the years ended 31 December 2016 include the
results, changes in equity and cash flows of the companies
now comprising the Group as if the current group
structure had been in existence throughout the years
ended 31 December 2016. The consolidated statements
of financial position of the Group at 31 December 2015
have been prepared to present the assets and liabilities
of the companies now comprising the Group, as if the
current group structure has been in existence at 31
December 2015 taking into account the respective dates
of incorporation or establishment, where applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As SMC International HK and SMC Cloud HK was under
the common control of the Controlling Shareholders,
equity interest held by Mr. Liu during the year ended 31
December 2015 up to the date of the completion of the
Group Reorganisation on 24 February 2016 is presented
as non-controlling interest in the consolidated financial
statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to

HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the

current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest
in Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRS in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

e B RS ERR M R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
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not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related amendments!

Lease?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with HKFRS Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Disclosure Initiative*

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses*
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t Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

J all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"). All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss;
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

o with regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit
or loss;

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised; and

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2016,
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material
impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group's financial assets. The Group's available-for-sale
investments will either be measured as fair value through
profit or loss or be designated as FVTOCI (subject to
fulfillment of the designation criteria).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

J Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price
o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have an
impact on the amounts reported (recognition of bulk
discount/rebates and sales return) as the timing of
revenue recognition may be affected and the amounts of
revenue recognised are subject to variable consideration
constraints, and more disclosures relating to revenue
is required. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
directors of the Company performs a detailed review. In
addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may
result in more disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront
prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in relation
to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under
the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents
right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of US$839,000 as disclosed
in note 26. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In
addition, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the
directors of the Company complete a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments require
the following changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing
cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing
control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect
of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier
application permitted. The application of the amendments
will result in additional disclosures on the Group'’s
financing activities, specifically reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position for liabilities arising from
financing activities will be provided on application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative (continued)

The amendment is not expected to have impact on the
results and financial position of the Group. The mandatory
effective date is 1 January 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments provide guidance on how an entity
determines, in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes,
whether to recognise a deferred tax asset in relation to
unrealised tax losses of a debt instrument that is classified
as an available-for-sale financial asset in accordance with
HKAS 39 under certain specific facts and circumstances.

The amendment is not expected to have impact on the
results and financial position of the Group. The mandatory
effective date is 1 January 2017.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have
material impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial
statements are determined on such a basis, except for
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains controls until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests has a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.

Merger accounting for business combination involving
entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the
time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the common control,
where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the businesses had been
combined at the end of the previous reporting period or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT & [E R4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

EXERBEKGE)

BOHEEE)

SEANARENMAEEE  BfF  #zm W
A AARAREERK B A RIFERZAEN
BEmENAFIRFERBULH

N IIEEPNGIENE i g F i N ) =) o
EmDFAEY -

HEEZESEBREBSHNEHETRE

RERBHRRBEZEELREH SN H
ERIEBVMBRRAR - BAOZFHE
BAMBERAEBERZESTEGE B’
EAHRE

EFHTHAES  EHEBIEBNEE
FERRREREESS - RARZEHIE H
B BEp A B EERB SRR TS
o

HeBnMEMEEBRAREESEHER
IXBERF2IIBHEXREAHERKE
ﬁ%éﬁi#&ﬂ% HE B (AREERE)H

RAEMBHRRPHLEREBRRREBR L
— (B ¥R & HIRER B R B H EE IR (JABRE
ERE)CAHMES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business and net
of discounts and returns.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Technical support services income are recognised when
the relevant services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. United States dollars) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under exchange reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit
plan and state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of each
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income as directly in
equity, respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated of inventories are determined on selling price
for inventories less estimated cost necessary to make the
sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: available-for-sale financial assets and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method (continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are
traded in an active market are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profit or
loss. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right
to receive the dividends is established. Other changes
in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
directors, amounts due from related companies, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest and principal payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes on the carrying amount of the allowance amount
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increased in
fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. In respect
of available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequent reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
a group entity are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and accrued charges, amount due to a director
and bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment on tangible assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are not capitalised to qualifying
assets are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development expenditure (continued)

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

J the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

J the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

J the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, the directors of the
Company is required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the coming twelve months, are described
below.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

Management estimates the recoverability of trade
receivables based on objective evidence. When there is
objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured at the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate compounded
at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables (continued)

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of
trade receivables of the Group was approximately
US$56,500,000 (2015: US$84,222,000), less of allowance
of doubtful debts of US$13,000 (2015: US$120,000).
Details are set out in note 16.

Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
cost necessary to make the sale. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience in selling goods of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in market
condition. The Group will reassess the estimation at the
end of each reporting period.

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of inventories
of the Group were approximately US$31,908,000 (2015:
US$17,863,000), less allowance of US$323,000 (2015:
US$438,000). Details are set out in note 15.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Income tax provision and corresponding penalty

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
directors of the Company has identified certain errors
in the statutory financial statements of a group entity
incorporated in Hong Kong for the years ended 31
December 2012 and prior periods and the year ended
31 December 2014, and consequently those statutory
financial statements were restated and reissued. The
Group then voluntarily submitted the revised tax
computations of the relevant group entity to the Inland
Revenue Department of Hong Kong (“IRD") for the
years of assessment 2012/2013 and 2014/2015 based
on the revised assessable profits calculated based on the
reissued statutory financial statements. The additional
tax provision for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
prior periods, and the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to US$770,000 and US$834,000, respectively,
was recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
the respective years. As the Group may have understated
its assessable profits and/or made an incorrect tax
returns or statement to the IRD for the relevant years of
assessment, it may be liable for penalty, the amount of
which accordingly to the penalty policy of the IRD would
be at a maximum of () a fine of HK$10,000 (equivalent
to US$1,290) to HK$50,000 (equivalent to US$6,450) for
each offense; (i) trebling the amount of tax undercharged
or would have been undercharged; and (iii) imprisonment
for 6 months to 3 years. However, the penalty may be
less than the maximum level if the Group can prove to
the satisfaction of the Commissioner of the IRD that there
is reasonable excuse for committing the offense and the
Company does not have any willful intention to omit/
understate the profit in question.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Income tax provision and corresponding penalty
(continued)

In addition to making additional tax provision for the
relevant year as discussed above, the directors of the
Company have also considered reasonably possible
penalty that may be imposed by the IRD on the Group
at each of the reporting date, if any, arising from
omission or understatement of assessment profits for
the years of assessment 2012/2013 and 2014/2015 by
the relevant group entity. After seeking professional
advice, the directors of the Company understand that
the reasonably possible penalty, if any, is likely to be at
the level of 30% of the amount of tax undercharged and
HK$10,000 (equivalent to US$1,290) for each offense,
that is, US$231,000 and US$250,000 for the year ended
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2014, respectively,
and relevant provisions were made and included in
administrative expenses in the profit or loss for the
relevant years. The directors of the Company believe that
adequate provision has been made against the potential
penalty. However, the ultimate penalty may be different
from the amounts provided, such difference will be
charged to profit or loss in the period during which such a
determination is made.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue represents the fair value of the
amounts received and receivable from the sales of
integrated circuit and other electronic components in
Hong Kong (“HK") and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") net of discounts and returns, during the year.

For the purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance, the executive directors of the
Company, collectively being the chief operating decision
maker, focuses and reviews on the overall results (i.e.
revenue and gross profit) and financial position of the
Group as a whole which are prepared based on the same
accounting policies set out in note 4. Accordingly, the
Group has only one single operating segment and no
further analysis of the single segment is presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information
The Group principally operates in HK and the PRC.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
sales by geographical market based on the jurisdictions
where the relevant group entities were set up, which are
also their place of operations during the year, irrespective
of the origin of goods/services.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from external customers based on location of
operations of the relevant group entities

WAR D FBE R (E)

B E R
NEBEBHEFBRAPBRLEER o

TREAEE RIS (ENEREEE
B ME AR DR - hRENASF
ERE L Tomm/ REHRIR)E D8
HEBDNT ©

RNEER B INBE P BN AR & E PR
BB DNFERDEENEHFITHTIA
™

KEEBEFBIRA (BRI EFE A
ZimE)

2016 2015
US$‘000 Us$'000
FET FET
HK N 574,016 433,261
The PRC Fh 95,880 52,110
669,896 485,371

Property, plant and equipment WF  BERRE
2016 2015
US$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FETT
HK B 204 239
The PRC Hh 225 239
429 478

2016 ANNUAL REPORT 4 ¥ &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WARDIEE(£2)
(continued)

Information about major customers FEEXEEFNER
Revenue from customers in respect of sales of goods of AEFRRFHEERM AR ARERELRUL
the year contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the A10% A LRSI -

Group is as follows:

2016 2015
Us$‘000 US$000
SFEETm FET
Customer 1 =51 174,747 143,993
Customer 2 2E2 97,108 82,104
Customer 3 =3 81,545 N/AT A3
1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total 1 REBFENHEBKALESMAEEZKARN
revenue of the Group in the respective year. 10%A L ©
There are no other revenue from transaction with a single REE2016F %2015F 12318 I FE -
external customer amounted to 10% or more of the BEH kG EE —INPREZRXZ WAL
total revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 REEBRAR10%TA L o
December 2016 and 2015.
OTHER INCOME 7. HftlA
2016 2015
US$’000 US$000
SFEETm FET
Dividend and interest income from At HEREHIRE &
available-for-sale investments FlEW A 300 180
Bank interest income RITHBUA 14 13
Technical support services income  $fff sz 35 BRFS YA 885 1,641
Interest income from life insurance  E[RREF BULA
policies 118 109
Written off of trade and other WEEE 5 e E &
payables H IR 768 &
Others Hih 86 58
2,171 2,001
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e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HZE20165F12A31H ILEE

8.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. BRBATFHE
2016 2015
Us$‘000 USs$'000
FEx FET
Profit before tax has been BREAIFDEE HBRA TSR
arrived at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) BEE5ME (H29) 583 372
Staff costs BT
Salaries and other allowances e M EMAERL 4,590 4,016
Discretionary bonus BB FEAL 2,705 2,831
Retirement benefit scheme RUKEA IR
contributions 785 669
Total staff costs 8 TR A42%8 8,663 7,888
Allowance for doubtful debts REEBEGTAITHER)
(included in administrative
expenses) 14 183
Allowance for inventories ERTFENEE
recognised (included in (FEASHERKA)
cost of sales) 13 248
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN B 165 38
Cost of inventories recognised EREBRANTERA
as an expense 638,279 463,145
Depreciation of property, ME - BERREITE
plant and equipment 165 257
Minimum lease payments under MAYEREHETH
operating leases in respect of SEAERK
office premises 900 805
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

9. EE FETBAERESHE
=

RIFERAz EMRAIRATHRBIFREES
REBTHRABRAFEZMEWT

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other Discretionary scheme
Fee allowance bonus contributions Total
HeR RIER
ik Hit2 MiETEA ATEIfR &t
Us$'000 Uss$’000 USs$'000 Uss$’000 Uss$'000
FEL FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December EZ2016%F12A31H
2016 LLEE
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Tian (note b) M4 (Hfizb) - 135 26 2 163
Mr. Wong (note c) BRE(Mic) - 106 26 2 134
Mr. Liu (note c) BI%5(Hfatc) - 89 26 5 120
Mr. Xie Yi (note d) HESLE(Hfztd) - 46 36 3 85
Independent BUFHTES :
non-executive directors:
Mr. Zheng Gang (note e) B30 S (Hite) 27 = = = 27
Mr. Tang Ming Je (note e) SERE LA (Hite) 27 = = = 27
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (note e) mEBLE (W ite) 27 = = = 27
81 376 114 12 583
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

9. EE FETHRAEREEME

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&
Directors (continued) BEE(E)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fee allowance bonus  contributions Total
ek RINEF
e Hib2ah [ HEIGS At
US$'000 US$'000 USs$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 220155128318
2015 LEE
Executive directors; HIES
Mr. Tian s - 119 31 1 161
Mr. Wong BEE - 78 25 2 105
Mr. Liu 2% - 71 31 4 106
= 268 87 17 372

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors and the chief
executive in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group.

Notes:

(a) The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to the duties
and responsibilities of the relevant individual within the Group and
the Group's performance.

(b) Mr. Tian was appointed as the executive director of the Company
on 22 October 2015 and he is also the chief executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above included those
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

(c) Mr. Wong and Mr. Liu were appointed as the executive directors of
the Company on 22 October 2015.

(d) Mr. Xie Yi was appointed as the executive director of the Company
on 16 March 2016.

(e) Mr. Zheng Gang, Mr. Tang Ming Je and Mr. Wong Hon Kit were

appointed as independent non-executive directors on 16 March
2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
year included three (2015: three) directors, details of their
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2015: two) individuals are as follows:

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

EE FETHRAEBREENS
(&)

1=

REBRAFEMNSEZHERFTATEIEISR
(2015%F : 38)EE - BREZMEFBHR
£ o #2428 (2015%F : 2%) ALHIENE 10
T

2016 2015

Us$’'000 Us$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other allowances He R EMERY 139 106

Discretionary bonus BYIBTEAL 91 57
Retirement benefit scheme IRIRAEHET B R

contributions 4 3

234 166

Their emoluments were fell within the following bands:

BEZMEE NHIRERA

2016 2015
Number of Number of
employee employee
BEHE EE2E
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent 0Z 1,000,000/ 7T (#EEH0E
to US$Nil to US$129,032) 129,032%7T) 2 2

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company or the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to joint or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. No director has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year.

HZE2016F12A318 EFE - AEBEWER
RRRESISERSFTAT(BRESRE
B HERME - LMEASEIEMAKRSEE
SR EMAREER AR - SERERER
MHE -  BEESHEXRERNEREED
EABE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRISHEHR

2016 2015
Us$‘000 US$000
FEx FET
Current tax: BNERTRIE :

Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNEH 2,375 2,125

PRC Enterprise Income Tax B EATISH
("PRC EIT") ([PETEAER]) 101 15
2,476 2,140

Underprovision in prior year BEFERE TR
PRC EIT B PTISH 18 -
2,494 2,140

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and is exempted from income tax.

The applicable tax rate of the subsidiaries in HK is 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%).

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income tax (the
"EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of The EIT
Law, the tax rate of entities established in the PRC is 25%
(2015: 25%) during the year. As JEIITHNERIFE AR A
a) (“SMC Technology SZ”) has been accredited as a
“High and New Technology Enterprise” by the relevant
authorities in Shenzhen, it is entitled to a reduced tax
rate of 15% (2015: 15%) for PRC EIT during the year.
Accordingly, the PRC EIT is calculated at 15% (2015: 15%)
on the assessable profit of SMC Technology SZ.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

FRSBER (&)

AERHRAX G REABRE A BE2EK
mARAEERTATF LR T

2016 2015
Uss$‘000 US$000
F*ET FZET
Profit before tax FRA AT AE 11,921 9,042
Tax charge at Hong Kong #16. 5% EEFISTH =X
Profits Tax Rate of 16.5% FTEMBIES T 1,967 1,492
Tax effect of expenses not PAHIH A OB S 2
deductible for tax purpose 614 337
Tax effect of income not BAFRRBARNT SR 2
taxable for tax purpose (22) (53)
Underprovision in respect of BEFERETE
prior year 18 -
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERA T IEE B RIS &
recognised 30 346
Utilisation of tax losses B R S AT AR FERR A A TR B 18
previously not recognised (111) =
Effect of different tax rates of EHA REER AL E R B
subsidiaries operating in ANRIER TR EN T E
other jurisdictions (8) )
Others HAth 6 20
Tax charge for the year FEHIEER 2,494 2,140

At 31 December 2016, the Group has unused tax losses
of US$3,753,000 (2015: US$4,244,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams in the respective entities. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of US$181,000 (2015:
US$640,000) that will expire in 2022 (2015: 2021). Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

R2016F 12318  AEBE A HERIDR
SR FE &9 ok B A B 18 548 8 3,753,000 7T
(20154F : 4,244,000 7T ) ° B 2 LA FE A
REEMNBBAE - A R RIE TR
HEE - AMERMTIIEEEA181,0003E 7T
(20154 : 640,000% 7T ) + I 4% 7 2022 4F
(20154 : 20214F )% H - EfhEIE R se &R
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
directors of the Company have identified certain errors
in the statutory financial statements of a group entity
incorporated in Hong Kong for the years ended 31
December 2012 and prior periods and for the year
ended 31 December 2014, and consequently those
statutory financial statements were restated and reissued.
The Group then voluntarily submitted the revised tax
computations of the relevant group entity to the IRD for
the years of assessment 2012/2013 and 2014/2015 based
on the revised assessable profits calculated based on the
reissued statutory financial statements. The additional
tax provision for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
prior periods, and the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to US$770,000 and US$834,000, respectively,
was recognised in the consolidated financial statements
in the respective years.

In addition to making additional tax provision for the
relevant year as discussed above, the directors of the
Company have also considered reasonably possible
penalty that may be imposed by the IRD on the Group
at each of the reporting date, if any, arising from
omission or understatement of assessment profits for
the years of assessment 2012/2013 and 2014/2015 by
the relevant group entity. After seeking professional
advise, the directors of the Company understand that
the reasonably possible penalty, if any, is likely to be at
the level of 30% of the amount of tax undercharged and
HK$10,000 (equivalent to US$1,290) for each offense,
that is, US$231,000 and US$250,000 for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2014, respectively,
and relevant provisions were made and included in
administrative expenses in the profit or loss for the
relevant years. The directors of the Company believe that
adequate provision has been made against the potential
penalty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

10. FRIEHEBRHZ)

REZE2015F12A31HILFEHME » AA A
EERREETEAMRIN—REBEER
HZE2012F12831 8 ILFE M UARTERR A &
HZE2014F12A31 B IEFEAEMEHREF
GHEAETHR BERZIEZEVNBRERDL
EMWEH T -  AEBREEBBEENZS
BB EAEYBRERTE NS ER
MEF EFEREEHEHIER2012/2013 K%
2014/2015 R M FEABEEE BB LEET
FRIBETER - HE2012F12831HIEFER
LARTHRFI A R E 2014512 31 B IEFER
KRN TE A 5 B A&770,0003< 7T 2. 834,000
XL ERSFEERGZAWTHBHRERAPER o

B Bt SCAT I RO AR BE F S TR BEANB TR B A
G RATBENABEEIEEREEN
B B ER AT AL £ 2012/2013 K2 2014/2015
AR FEABAEE TR RHRVERERTA
FEEMEAEBRASIZ(INE) - £
BHEETR%  KARRIEEEER AENE

TR (B ) TRER D RS EN30% LT
RGE #110,0007 7T (FHE 71,2905 7T) - B
HZE2012F12A31H K%20145F12 4318 1t
FE 5 R A231,000% 7T K% 250,000 7T © B,
Lt ER AR B WA AT EEER
THAYR - AR EEHEAEBEHME

SIFRGETIRE & B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2016 2015
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as FANEERBD IR ZIE
distributions for the year 3,000 4,000
Prior to the Group Reorganisation, SMC International HK EAREBEEAR - NEBREREENEE2015

declared and paid dividends of US$4,000,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2015 to its then shareholders.

In April 2016, the Company declared and paid a dividend
of US$150 per share totalling US$3,000,000 to its ordinary
shareholders whose names appeared on its register of
members as at the close of business of 31 March 2016.

The board of directors of the Company do not
recommend a payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year is
based on the following data:

F12A31B L FERAEERBRRE IR LIRS
[i% £.4,000,000% 7T, ©

R2016F4 7 - RRARIMER2016F3 A31
HEXRHAERFRINERRAMALE B
R% B% R S K MK < A% 150 T AR B A £
3,000,000 T °

ARBEEZW M EZRRNEHZE2016F12 A
318 IEFERRERZE ©
12. BRER

FARRRHEA AREERNZIEFTHEIA
TEERE

2016 2015
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Earnings ZF
Profit for the year attributable to HERFRBF T S AR
owner of the Company for the B ARG EEF)E
purpose of basic earings per share 9,279 6,096

SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED /i #2f% AR A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12. BREF (&)
2016 2015
Number of ordinary shares ZEREAE
Weighted average number of MERERBFM S LRKE
ordinary shares for the purpose of  JI#EFIHE
basic earnings per share 399,584,383 337,500,000

The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 has been adjusted for
the effect of (i) the Group Reorganisation and the
capitalisation issue of shares of the Company that are
deemed to have become effective since 1 January 2015;
and (i) the capital contributions by shareholders during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

No diluted earnings per share are presented for both

years as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BEKRE

Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
improvements fixtures vehicles Total
HEWEEE MRES RE #ct
US$000 US$000 US$°000 US$000
FZET FET FET FZET
COST B 7R
At 1 January 2015 201541 /81H 28 649 784 1,461
Exchange alignment B 5 SRR = (13) (12) (25)
Additions BE 56 106 - 162
At 31 December 2015 72015412 H31H 84 742 772 1,598
Exchange alignment FE K - (28) (18) (46)
Additions BE 31 91 12 134
Written off iG] = (9) — (9)
At 31 December 2016 722016412 H31H 115 796 766 1,677
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2015 201551 81H 8 372 494 874
Exchange alignment [ K = (5) (6) an
Provided for the year  FN#EE 21 103 133 257
At 31 December 2015 201551283 1H 29 470 621 1,120
Exchange alignment b A - (12) (16) (28)
Provided for the year ~ FR#E{E 21 84 60 165
Written off b Eis] = (9) = (9)
At 31 December 2016 7420165125318 50 533 665 1,248
CARRYING VALUES AREE
At 31 December 2016 7201651283 1H 65 263 101 429
At 31 December 2015 72015412 H31H 55 272 151 478

SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.

(continued)

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their residual value, as follows:

M BERKB(E)

W - BRE RR S R FI A EEE
R IETA I A E AT E - RS
o

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the lease THEMFERE SR A
term, whichever is shorter (A& %)
Furniture and fixtures 5 years R E 54
Motor vehicles 5 years VREE 54
14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 14. AIHHERE
2016 2015
Us$’000 US$000
FETT FET
Listed investments: EmRE
— Debt securities listed in HK —EBB L THERES 1,277 1,235
Unlisted investments: JELTIRE :
— Investment fund A (Note i) —REESAMN 7)) 1,089 1,060
— Investment fund B (Note ii) —REREEB(H7ii) 5,406 3,530
7,772 5,825
Notes: HiaE -

(i) The investment fund A represents unit trust investments which
invest primarily in Asian bonds and other debt securities.

(ii) The investment fund B represents unit trust investments which
mainly invest Treasury Bonds and mortgage-backed securities in
the United States.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, all the available-for-sale

investments of the Group have been pledged as security
for the bank borrowings of the Group (note 24).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

15. INVENTORIES 15. &
2016 2015
USs$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Electronic components held FHEEENE st
for resale 32,231 18,301
Less: Allowance for inventories B FERE (323) (438)
31,908 17,863
The movements in the allowance of inventories are as FEERBEDHHEIINT
follows:
2016 2015
Us$’000 Us$‘000
FET FET
At beginning of year FH) 438 190
Allowance recognised in profit and  FA 8% A HER AV B
loss 13 248
Written off i 3H (128) -
At end of year FR 323 438
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes the BRRAXNTFERABENA - EMRTEE
above allowance recognised in profit or loss in respect of A ERFEFENNIERPRERORME -

write-downs of inventories to net realisable value.

SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED i3 42 A R A A 125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. EZEWFIE

2016 2015

Us$’000 Us$'000

FFET F=T

Trade receivables 5 WA 56,513 84,342
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  Jg : RERE (13) (120)
56,500 84,222
The Group entered into factoring agreements with certain RNEEEE TRITEI L RIB W - AEBR
banks so as to obtain bank advances. As at 31 December 1TEFK - 120165128318 + 36,428,000
2016, trade receivables of US$36,428,000 (2015: Nil) had JC(20154F : )M E 5 REWFIAEE RIEEH
been transferred to the banks in accordance with the BEREREBHRERETRIT - HRARA
relevant non-recourse factoring agreements. Relevant EERR - HEFHRKFIERBN B KRR
trade receivables were derecognised as the directors RO 2 R FUL A & R IFFER B - W

of the Company are of the opinion that the substantial HEE S RWFIEE TR ILHER -

risks and rewards associated with the trade receivables
have been transferred and therefore qualified for
derecognition.

The Group allows credit period of 0 to 90 days to its AEBEREZFREOEIOCRNEEH - 1
customers. The aged analysis of the Group's trade SIMEHR - AEERE SRR (A
receivables, net of allowance, based on invoice date at #B) IR EHHNRESITIT ¢

the end of each reporting period are as follows:

2016 2015

Us$’000 US$°000

FET FET

0-30 days 0-30K 19,029 57,750
31-60 days 31-60K 16,344 17,727
61-90 days 61-90K 10,971 7,526
91-180 days 91-180K& 10,052 953
Over 180 days #8iE180K 104 266
56,500 84,222
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors
with a carrying amount of US$15,383,000 (2015:
US$20,293,000) at 31 December 2016, which are past
due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period.
As there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and a substantial amount of these debts were
subsequently settled, the amounts are still considered
recoverable.

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

6. EZEWFIEE)

R2016F12A31H » ZEBMNE FEIWR
HBENRERRE BHERRERNER
T8 - HEEME{E A15,383,000% 7T (20154 -
20,293,0003%7T) - BN EEE R MEAE
B EIEP RSO S EMBRD LSS -
T bASE L SRIB M 2R A AT AT IR E] ©

2016 2015
Us$’000 US$000
SFESTT FZETT

Overdue: #H -
1-30 days 1-30% 11,717 18,894
31-60 days 31-60K 3,129 1,077
Over 60 days HiB60K 537 322
15,383 20,293

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. The majority of the Group’s trade
receivables that are past due but not impaired are from
customers with good credit quality with reference to
respective settlement history. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivables from the date credit was initially granted
up to the end of the of the reporting period.

REMNEFRFEPH - AEEFHEER
FREEEER  UARPAEEERE - &
2EZBUAENEERE  AEEXRZEE
HEXBENEZEBUGKIELRE ARG R
MEEERMNEF - AREYX RHIELRIA
FrA R ER R o

REE B 5 R YSIRN A W@ 1EE - A
SEREHIRUFEARIRLEERER
SRR EEERNEMFZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

6. EZEWFIEE)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERRESE
2016 2015
Us$’000 US$°000
FEx FET
At beginning of year FH) 120 346

Impairment losses recognised B AR AR (B B 18

in profit or loss 14 183
Amount written off as uncollectible X UG B HyHi 5 & 58 (121) (409)
At end of year FR 13 120

As at 31 December 2016, included in allowance for
doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables
amounting to US$14,000 (2015: US$183,000). The
management has reviewed the repayment history of these
long overdue customers and in consideration of their
deteriorating credit quality, no amount is expected to be
settled subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, full impairment was recognised.

Further, the management of the Group has determined
that trade receivables amounting to US$121,000 (2015:
US$409,000), which had been fully impaired, were written
off during the year due to the wound up of or settlement
of disputes with customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

17. € AAREREMERRIE

RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FZET
Deposits %e 483 388
Payments for life insurance SRRENRAZE)
policies (note) 2,878 2,810
Prepayments TR IE 212 86
Other receivables H {th fE UG Fx78 836 710
Value-added tax recoverable AU EE(E R 1,178 =
5,587 3,994
Analysed as: DA
Non-current IERED 2,869 2,802
Current e 2,718 1,192
5,587 3,994
Note: Htat -

In 2012 and 2014, the Group entered into life insurance policies with an
insurance company to insure a director of the Company. Under these
policies, the Group is the beneficiary and policy holder and the total
insured sum is US$10,000,000 in aggregate. The Group is required to
pay a single premium totalling US$2,640,000 at inception. The Group
can, at any time, withdraw cash based on the account value of the policy
(“Account Value”) at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
gross premium paid plus accumulated guaranteed interest earned and
minus any charges made in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the policy. If withdrawal is made between the 1st to 15th policy year for
the first policy and 1st to 18th for the second policy (collectively the “Policy
Years"), there is a specified amount of surrender charge deducted from
Account Value. This insurance company will pay the Group a guaranteed
interest for the first year and a variable return per annum afterwards (with
minimum guaranteed interest rate of 2% to 3% per annum) during the
effective period of the policies.

At the inception date of the policies, the upfront payment paid by the
Group included a fixed policy premium charge and a deposit. Monthly
policy expense and insurance charges will be incurred over the insurance
period with reference to the terms set out in the life insurance policy. The
policy premium, expense and insurance charges are recognised in profit or
loss over the expected life of the policies and the deposit placed is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. As represented by
the directors of the Company, the Group will not terminate the policies
nor withdraw cash prior to the Policy Years and the expected life of the
policies remained unchanged from the initial recognition.

R20126F k20145 - AEBARR A —BESRM—RR
BARBESRRE - RIEZSRE - AEEAZZAR
RN » R IR42%E/510,000,0005 T © 1R - ANEEBE
T BMRE S ££2,640,0003% T - NEE AR ERER
RIFRANRFPEAE(REEEDERIEIES - ZEFE
ERIE SRR B GENFTHEN REHREF S RIBRR
BIR EIERRAGHETEE M EMIBETE - MR EMHRE
FZETHAREFERE-MNREE—ZF+/\ER
BEEE (B REEE ) 2MERF - NARKESEETNR
BFESEMNRRER - ZRRAFBRE—FRREER
HREF B REZEREFXNAANETF ZEE R (KK
REFEREF2%E3%) °

RERBRRAY  AEEXNNEEEAEEEERESR
RAkize - # ARERAX RRREARERRBH2ES
BRREPTERNMEL - RE - X KRR EBERER
HFHARRNIRSIER - MRS ANE R BRI R 5w
HRATIRR - ARRIEERTR  ARETERREFEL
AR IEREBSIZEURS - B IR ARIRETRHF M4
RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

18. TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following were the Group's trade receivables that
were factored to banks on a fully recourse basis for the
year ended 31 December 2015. As the Group has not
transferred the significant risk and rewards relating to
these trade receivables, it continues to recognise the
full carrying amount of these trade receivables and has
recognised the cash received on the transfer as a secured
bank borrowings (note 24). These financial assets are
carried at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

18.

EEIREE

T AHZ2015F12A31 8 IEFEAEEIR
FHERELETRITRIBNE S EKGIE o
HRAEETEERNEE SRNGIECE
KRB KR ER - HEESEREREE -
WA R R UER 2 IR S TR A F IRIRRTTE
K(HIFE24) - WESREERGETHRR
R SHR AN BR ©

Trade invoices discounted to
banks with full recourse

MEFRITYAZTZERENEZRER

2016 2015

Us$’000 Us$'000

FET FET

Carrying amount of transferred assets F#: & E M REE - 23,002
Carrying amount of associated B aENREE

liabilities - (20,817)

Net position R = 2,185
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e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) DIRECTORS

19. BEW()EERE

Maximum amount
outstanding
during the year

FAMAZANESEE
At 31 December At 1 January 31 December
M12H831H M1B1H 12A31H
2016 2015 2015 2016 2015
Directors Terms US$°000 US$'000 US$'000  US$’000 US$°000
BE= R4 FE7T FET FET FE7T FET
Amounts due from directors (non-trade balances)
ERESTIE(FEZ L)
Mr. Tian Unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand
HE4E EIEH  RRRIREREE 371 833 371 833
Mr. Wong Unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand
BRE EEE - RS RIRERER 10 10 10 10
- 381 843
Amount due to a director (non-trade balances)
ER—2EERECGEE S8
Mr. Liu Unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand
25tk BER  2ERRENRER - 600 600

The amounts due from (to) directors were fully settled
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

U () EZFTEEREE20165F12A31H

LFEFEERGEE -

SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

20. AM

OUNTS DUE FROM RELATED

COMPANIES

20. EWEEHBE A RFE

Maximum amount
outstanding during

the year
FAMAXNNREEHE
At 31 December At 1 January 31 December
M12A31A MA1E 12A31H
2016 2015 2015 2016 2015

Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000  US$'000 US$'000

FET

TET TET FET TET

Shenzhen Wisdom Fortune Technology A3 S S EHE AR A 7]

Corporation Limited

- Trade balance (notes i, iii) —B S8R5 i) - 619 88 N/ATER NATEA
— Non-trade balances (notes i, iv) — BRI iv) = = 49 = 49
Power-Core Limited ONBRAF
- Non-trade balance (notes i, iv) — kB SER ) iv) - 396 33 396 396
Wisdom Fortune Corporation Limited &8/ A 7]
— Non-trade balance (notes i, iv) —FB IR iv) - - 1 1 1
Smart-Core Samoa OEEED
- Non-trade balance (notes i, iv) — B SERF iv) = 934 = 934 934
- Trade balance (notes ii, iii) — BB, iii) - 150 434 N/ATER N/ADER
- 2,099 605
Notes: rsa
(i) Mr. Tian, Mr. Wong and Mr. Liu were the shareholders of these (i) Mok BhERBEEBZEREB A RARE -
related companies.
(i) Mr. Tian was the shareholder of the related company. (i)  ALEERZMBABMBIR
(i)~ The amount was of trade nature, unsecured, non-interest bearing iy HBEREBESME - BEEFREE  FEHA
and with a credit period of 0 to 60 days. At 31 December 2015, the 0-60K ° pA20155F 12 4318 « ## iR B30K
balance was aged within 30 days. The entities were disposed of Ao FEEN2016F12A31BIEFELE FEL
to independent third parties during the year ended 31 December F=77 o At MAXNZHRERIN2016512
2016 and accordingly, the outstanding balance was included in A31BEME 5 EUGK -
trade receivable at 31 December 2016.
(ivy  The amounts were of non-trade nature, unsecured, non-interest vy BEREBIIEESHHEE - BEKF  EERIREX

bearing and repayable on demand. The whole balance are fully
settled during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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21.

22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

The pledged bank deposits of the Group are pledged to
banks for securing bank borrowings (note 24). The bank
balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. The pledged bank deposits/bank
balances carry interest at market rates as follows:

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

21. BEEBRITER RITEHRES

RBSRITER - AEENDEMRITER
HIRGRTT(ME24) - RITER MBS BE
AEBERFENRE MREIHAE S =1EA KA
THREBRITER - BEMRITERRT
BRI IS ARG

2016 2015

Range of interest rate per annum: FREEHE -
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITIER
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIRE

0.01%-0.5%
0.001%-0.05%

0.001%-0.2%
0.0017%-0.01%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash denominated in
currencies other than functional currency of the relevant
group entities at the end of the reporting date are as
follows:

N IEBHIR - AEBUAEBSEEREE
BEH I EETHENE EMRITHFRIER
TRGLASHREERT

2016 2015

Us$’000 US$°000

FET TETT

HK$ BT 717 52

RMB ARE 221 310
TRADE PAYABLES 22. EZEMNRE

2016 2015

Us$’000 USs$°000

FET T

Trade payables g 5 NI 68,669 46,281

The credit period on trade purchases is 0 to 60 days.

B S RBFNEER0-60K

SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED i3 42 A R A A 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

22. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 22. ESENFRIB(E)

RBERR - REZRAMAENLAREE
SIENFIERREBE DT

Ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables based
on invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as

134

follows:
2016 2015
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
0-30 days 0-30K 43,531 45,580
31-60 days 31-60K 24,849 328
61-90 days 61-90K 120 15
Over 90 days EBIE0K 169 358
68,669 46,281
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 23. HitfERREREFER

CHARGES
2016 2015
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FZETT
Accrued expenses JESHE A 10,594 5,573
Deposits received from customers BREFPIES 1,132 2,497
Other payables HoAth & 15 5K 1,914 3,194
13,640 11,264
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. BANK BORROWINGS

The variable-rate bank borrowings are repayable as

24.

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

RITEE

FENRBITEENERITRAOT

follows:
2016 2015
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Secured bank borrowings EEIBRITEE 490 1,823
Secured import and export loans BiHEHEOER 22,063 14,249
Collateralised bank borrowings BT3B R EHIRIEE 5 E W FIE
on trade receivables factored IR TEE
with recourse - 20,817
22,553 36,889
Carrying amounts of repayable (RREEFH)EENEE
(according to scheduled FRHEE -
repayable term):
— within one year ——FR 22,266 36,386
— in the second year —HF 204 204
— in the third to fifth years —F=FFRF 83 299
22,553 36,889
Carrying amounts that contain a REREENEFREE
repayable on demand clause (RRBBEETIIR)
(shown under current liabilities) 22,553 36,889

The banking facilities contain various covenants which
include the maintenance of certain financial ratios and
restrictions on the maximum amounts due from a director
and related companies. The directors of the Company
have reviewed the covenants compliance and represented
that they were not aware of any breach during both years.

RITREFAE TR - BRES T
R - WHER—BES AR QRA
MREEERERY - ARFEEDHMR
HETERALR TP - MEFEAR
Y FEERBR

SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED /i #2f% AR A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

24,

25.

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 December 2016, the secured bank borrowings
and secured import and export loans are secured by (i)
available-for-sale investments of US$7,772,000 (note
14), (ii) life insurance policies (note 17); and (iii) pledged
bank deposits. At 31 December 2015, the secured bank
borrowings and secured import and export loans were
secured by (i) personal guarantees from Mr. Tian and his
spouse, and Mr. Wong and supported by legal charge
over their properties; (i) available-for-sale investments of
US$5,825,000 (note 14); (iii) life insurance policies (note
17); (iv) pledged bank deposits; and (v) trade receivables.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to

TEE(E)

R2016%F12A318 » BIMERTEEREGER
3 OB FGRB AT A 2R ()7,772,000

ETTH A HERE (BEE14) © ()VERIRE
(BIaE17) « KB HEMIEITFR - 72015

F12A318 - BEFRITEE KA EIFED
OEFUBEMAN T AR ERGOB LEREES
AR E A REAEAER - &MY
EHPRATEMED 5 (i)5,825,0003 T Ay AT £ Hj &

& (KIsE14) ¢ |||7M1%$(WE17) (iv)
EHEMIRITER - MV)E FEBGIE

AEBEENERMNE (LEFRRERAEX)

contracted interest rates) of the Group's borrowings are as o
follows:

2016 2015
Interest rates per annum R =

—FEFIE

— variable rates

3.23%-5.25% 2.68%-5.25%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
denominated in currencies other than functional currency
of the relevant group entities at the end of the reporting
date are as follows:

HKS$ BIT

SHARE/PAID-IN CAPITAL

At 31 December 2015, the capital represented the
aggregate share capital of SMC International HK,
SMC Cloud HK and the Company of HK$10,000,000
(equivalent to US$1,282,000), HK$1,000,000 (equivalent
to US$128,000) and US$0.1, respectively.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT & [E R4

RIFEHR - LB BEBEREIEEEE AN
NEEASENAEBRTEERRESRYIN

"|?
2016 2015
US$’000 US$000
FET FET
- 1,116

. B BRER

R2015%F12A31H » BRAEGEREES

# B 75 10,000,0007% 7T (#H°E 72 1,282,000
70)  BEEEBHIARAN1,000,0008 7T (HHE
72128,0003 7T ) RANA BHIALAR0. 1 5E TT AV AR
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. SHARE/PAID-IN CAPITAL (continued)

The share capital at 31 December 2016 represents the

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE2016F12A318 ILEE

25. BA BREKRE)

MR2016F12A318  BRAAAR QBB EHITH

issued share capital of the Company as detailed below. A FHBEHEIAT
Number of shares Amount
BRGOEE &8
US$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEC.01E T EBK
Authorised: SEIE
On date of incorporation on 22 October 1420154108228 (A B

2015, 31 December 2015 and 2016 H9) -+ 2015F &2016%12A31H 5,000,000,000 50
Issued and fully paid ERTRBE
1 share allotted and issued on PAREMAC L B HARC 3 3597 15%

the date of incorporation (note a) Bt (Hita) 1 -
Issue of shares on 7 November 2015811 A7 IREER

2015 pursuant to the BRI (Hitb)

Reorganisation (note b) 9,999 -
At 31 December 2015 2015%F12A31H 10,000 =
Issue of shares on 24 February 2016 201652 H24 B 3477 (fitc)

(note ¢) 10,000 -
Capitalisation issue (note d) BAMEEIT(Hfitd) 374,980,000
Issue of shares on 7 October 2016 FR2016F10 A7 B BT (Hite)

(note e) 125,000,000 1
At 31 December 2016 2016%F12A31H 500,000,000 5

Notes:

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 22
October 2015 with an authorised share capital of US$50,000
divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
US$0.00001 per share. On the date of incorporation, one share
was allotted and issued to the subscriber, which was transferred to
Smart IC Limited at par value on the same date.

On 7 November 2015, the Company allotted and issued 5,999 new
shares to Smart IC Limited, 3,000 new shares to Insight Limited
and 1,000 new shares to Epart Limited for a total consideration is
US$0.999.

On 24 February 2016, the Company allotted and issued
additional 7,000 shares to Smart IC Limited and 3,000 shares
to Insight Limited for a consideration of US$14,359,834.30 and
US$6,154,214.70, respectively, which were fully paid in cash and a
share premium of US$20,514,000 was resulted accordingly.

Bt -

RARN2015F10 22 B e S B S MK -
& TE BX A 50,0003 7T (5 A5, OOO 000,000/% &
[i% T {80.00001 £ oy L @AY ) - ReEfl Ak A
B mRBARERBETRERG - ZRORA
HIZEESE T Smart IC Limited °

M2015F 11 A7 8 - X2 & 5 Al [ Smart IC
Limited ~ Insight Limited 5 Epart Limited it # 2
3%175,9998% + 3,000/% & 1,000/ # & (n + AR (E
£0.999% 7T ©

M2016F2 248 + 2N A & [A Smart IC Limited
K Insight Limited % 5l it 2 2 8175851 7,000/% &
3,000/ 5 - RIEH Bl A 14,359,834.303% 7T &
6,154,214.70% 7T - EAREEBIE - EERD
%§1820,514,0003< 7T °

SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED /&% AR 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

25. SHARE/PAID-IN CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

26.

(d)

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the then shareholders
of the Company on 19 September 2016, conditional upon the
share premium account of the Company being credited as a result
of the initial public offering and listing of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange, the directors of the Company were authorised
to capitalise the amount of US$3,749.80 from the amount standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company to
pay up in full at par a total of 374,980,000 ordinary shares of
US$0.00001 each for allotment and issue to the shareholders as of
30 June 2016, on a pro rata basis.

On 7 October 2016, the Company issued 125,000,000 new
shares at US$0.00001 per share for a total gross proceeds of
approximately US$29,747,000 by way of initial public offering of
the Company on the Stock Exchange.

The shares allotted and issued during the year rank pari passu in all
respects with the then existing shares of the Company.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of each of the reporting period, the Group
had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

25.

26.

BAEBRERE

Wiz - (&)

d READBERRERN2016FIA19H BBH
EHRZRR  FARANBRNEERAERA
P& R AR A R R ) B X BT _E T M 2R AR AE R
% BRARFAEZEEHERMNEERANERS
B3 74980 LB AEAR  WREEHE A K
374,980,000A% & AR I {60.00001 % 7T 49 E @R -
AL BTRI 70 20165 6 A 30 B RO A SR AL 3% &% 3417
Bdn o

(e) M2016F 10878 « RARIBBALR RIEE AT
BIXAFEERN I - #17125,000,0000% &A% @
{H0.00001 ETTRIFRY - & HBEEFTSRIBHETE
#129,747,000% 7T °

FARERBETORNERRNFERRERNES THE
BRSNS -

A 7L O R

FEEEREBEA

REBEHR - ARERBEEYEH A

BEHEEBOMm W RBITHARRKERES
BOEREMRIIERAT

2016 2015

Us$’000 Us$°000

FET T#ET

Within one year —FR 790 784
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~ F-ZFHF(BEEEME) 49 227
839 1,011

The leases are generally negotiated for a lease term of
two years at fixed rentals.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT 4 k&
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27.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
HK

The Group operates a scheme under Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes ("MPF Scheme”) for its
qualifying employees in HK. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes at the lower of a specified amount or 5%
of relevant payroll costs monthly to the MPF Scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees. The total
contribution to MPF Scheme and charged to profit or loss
amounted to US$23,000 (2015: US$25,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

The PRC

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC
are members of the state-sponsored retirement benefit
scheme organised by the relevant local government
authority in the PRC. The subsidiary is required to
contribute, based on a certain percentage of the payroll
costs of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme
and has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. The total amount provided by the Group to
the scheme in the PRC and charged to profit or loss are
US$774,000 (2015: US$661,000) for the year ended 31
December 2016.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders and maintaining an
adequate capital structure. The Group's overall strategy
remained unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
include bank borrowings and amount due to a director,
net of bank balances and cash and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.

27.

28.

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

BB E
it

AEBAEBAERNEBEMHATIEQTE
SEFEI([BESEEI) - RBELTEETH
BERAEENEESFAFE  HTHRZE
AZEHNES - REBUIETESERAEES
TEKARS%(MEERE) MBS 2
Mo RBIEL SRR - HE2016F12A8
31BIEFE - BEFf AR ES 24
#8%E 523,0005 75 (20154 : 25,000%7T) °

HREl

NEB R AM B QR MRS 2+ BAEE
77 BN HEE BT HE1T MO B R & B iR K& F 5T
EIMKE - BB QR AR ERENE
BREEETENANETAELER - BE
AR E N BB R RIRBEAREF
EEFAINNEMES - BE2016F12831
BIEFE @ T ABZAE S RSB ENR
THAR%8 /774,000 7T (20154F : 661,0003%
JT) °

EXERER

AEBEBHEAUBRASEAHEL
% FNZEEREEEFE ALK LIRS
BENENGERE - R EFHRE > AEENE

BRBEITE -

AEENEARBHER (BRRITERRE
N—REERB)NRRTER LB IARK
REGEA A (BRERA K ) B -

SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED /i #2f% AR A &
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The management of the Group regularly reviews the
capital structure on a continuous basis taking into account
the cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends and new shares issues
as well as the issue of new debts and redemption of
existing debts.

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

28.

29.

EXEBRER(E)

AN B IR B Y B AR TE R
5 WEREAORARABER - A%E
BEBRERE « BITHIARBEITHEE
RIEERAE A T EAREEAARE -

ERMIA

(@) THMIAEH

2016 2015
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FZETT
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables B REWGIA(BIEIRITE
(including bank balances and cash) #NIR&EEIEE ) 120,793 100,940
Available-for-sale investments A HESE 7,772 5,825
Financial liabilities o= a=Ri
Amortised cost R AN 94,219 91,733

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sales investments, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
directors, amounts due from related companies,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade payables, other payables and accrued
charges, amount due to a director and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The directors of the Company manage and
monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. E@MIAE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREMREEBERBEKEE)

(continued)

Market risk 5 m R

Currency risk EHE

The group entities have foreign currency AEETRERESUINESTENEREE
denominated monetary assets and monetary KEE - FTAREBEERINE R o 4
liabilities which expose the Group to foreign NRAEERRNEEREEKRIIER
currency risk. The directors of the Company believe % WA TRIRERINERRE - 28
the Group does not have significant foreign FERAINER IS LR E KRR o

exchange exposures and will consider the use of
foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce the
currency exposures in case the foreign exchange
exposures become significant.

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency BWMEHR - AEEINESHENEE
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the BEMBENEREENT

end of the reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
EE =F
2016 2015 2016 2015

Uss$‘000 US$'000 USs$‘000 US$'000
FEx TEIL FEx TET

Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$") BB rx]) 717 52 - 1,116
Renminbi (“RMB") AR
([AR®]) 221 310 - -

SMART-CORE HOLDINGS LIMITED i3 42 A R A A 141
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the group
entities, of which their functional currency are RMB
had amount due from immediate holding company
which are denominated in US$. These intragroup
balances are approximately US$29,909,000 (2015:
US$31,858,000).

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in US$ against RMB.
5% is the sensitivity rate used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items including the
bank balances, variable-rate pledged bank deposits
and bank borrowings and adjusts their translation
at the end of the reporting period for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. A negative number below
indicates a decrease in post-tax profit where US$
weaken 5% against RMB. For a 5% strengthening of
US$ against the relevant currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

29. EMIE(E)

(b)

CREREERERBER(E)

TS mE (&)

EMm g (4E)
HE2016F12A31HIEFE » LAR
ﬁ%‘%mé‘ﬁﬁ%m%lﬁﬁf%ﬁu%ﬁ%
B EREEZRAR R EEE
APNGIIEEES- 34 7,%29,909,000% T
(20154 : 31,858,000 7T) °

TRALANEELHNETHARKEER
EF R TFE5%MBURE o 5% BURE
REEEHINEE RIS IR EE
B - BUIRREDITEBEAINEHE
MARBEEHIAR - AP e - R/ITE
g7 ¥ B EEMBITER AR THER

W8 ¥ & HA AR 5L 5% B 91 BEE FEE = % &)
ABEBE - TRPBERTETILA
RERESRHHREF BB - R
SRR BEBINETHES% - BEFBEE

Profit for the year (note) FEFEM L)

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on
bank balances, variable-rate pledged bank deposits, bank
borrowings and intra-group balances at the end of the
reporting period.

The directors of the Company considered the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the exposure at the end of the reporting
period does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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EHRFERANEE -
2016 2015
Us$000 Us$000
FET TET
(1,239) (1,317)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

For the exposure to the fluctuation in United
States dollar against Hong Kong dollar, as Hong
Kong dollar is pegged to United States dollar, the
directors of the Company are of opinion that such
exposure is insignificant and no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to its fixed-rate available-for-sale
investments.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to payments for life insurance policies,
bank balances, variable-rate pledged bank deposits
and bank borrowings. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
interest rates on payments for life insurance policies,
bank balances and pledged bank deposits and bank
borrowings.

The Group’'s exposure to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group's cash
flow interest rate is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of London Interbank Offered Rate and
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from the
Group's bank borrowings. The Group currently does
not have interest rate risk hedging policy. However,
the directors of the Company closely monitor the
exposure to future cash flow interest rate risk as a
result of change on market interest rate and will
consider hedging changes in market interest rates
should the need arise.

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE2016F12A318 ILEE

29. EMIE(E)

(b)

CREREERERBER(E)

TS mE (&)
BRI (E)

BRASTTETERKENER - AR
FTTEETTH - ARBEERA/E—
BRI TEKR - PTLANAREITERE D
AT o

T 2

AEEERANE S THLERENA
TEFRER -

AEEEERA SRR - RITHES
FREEMERRBTERFRSRE
MR - MAKERRSRENRE
REREPESRNR - RITEHR
ERRITERRIRITEROM XKE -

AEEmERAHET A ENNXERF
BERAWERBE 2R EE—F
AEERSREMNEXRABREIERHAER
SEBTERNBBRITAZFELE
AIRTTRIERSEKE) - AEE B AL
BEEANXEREIPEEK - A - AR
AEERTYERMSN R E S 5| 2
REBEREN KRB REEE
RIS RRER
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for payments for life insurance policies, bank
balances, variable-rate pledged bank deposits and
bank borrowings for the year ended 31 December
2016. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents directors’
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

29. EMIE(E)

(b)

CREREERERBER(E)

TS mE (&)
ESNAC Y

LAUNREE DT RBEE R - BT
g FEERIFERERITETRE
£2016F12 8318 IEF EHEERAF =
FERTEE @ WERRSHRERRAEED
ST ANRERRDAEEMRR -
MEZEE A BREIERFE R R EFHE
FSOEEZRZEIER - ARESY
BRI RA B EEL M -

2016 2015
Us$’000 Us$’000
FEx FET
Increase (decrease) in profit FEFEEICR )
for the year 211 (92)

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would increase/decrease
by US$6,000 (2015: US$6,000) mainly as a result
of the changes in the fair value of debt securities
included in available-for-sale investments.

The directors of the Company considered the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the interest
rate risk as the exposure at the end of the reporting
period does not reflect the exposure during the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its
available-for-sale investments. The directors of the
Company manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to price risks at
the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale
investments had been 5% (2015: 5%) higher/lower,
other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2016 would increase/decrease
by US$389,000 (2015: US$291,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is not representative of the
Group's price risk as it only reflects the impact of
price changes to available-for-sale investments held
at the end of the year but not the exposure during
the year.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE2016F12A318 ILEE

29. EMIE(E)

(b)

CREREERERBER(E)
mEmEeE(E)
HE A (E18 a5

REBUEE A SR E T mERE R E
@ o ARBEFBBTRRABRE R
BHEREHZFRR

BT

TXFAEBRESMHER RS B A
R EE R M EH o

HZE2016F12A31BILEE - #%
AHEERENER DRI LR TE
5% (20154 : 5%)  RIA[ft HEH/RE
WATFEZHBEEREMEEmBAD
B3 A0, 35 4> 389,000 7T (2015 4F -
291,000%7T) °

ARBEERR  HRENERRE
RESHUERTFENAHHERENT
2 MFEEFRANTE - FASRE
DT TRERR AR EAERRER

EE AR

R2016F 12 318 » ANEE R &
NMeERBZRIRE PRI
FHCHERCHEENREBEME - 1
RRGEHRERBITEE(REEE
BLE ) - BB RAEEELNT
E518 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit
risk at 31 December 2016 on trade receivables from
the Group’s top five major customers amounting
to US$35,004,000 (2015: US$70,329,000) and
accounted for 62% (2015: 84%) of the Group’s
total trade receivables. The major customers of the
Group are mainly leading brand-name consumer
electronic product manufacturing companies in the
PRC.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the directors of the Company
review the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the management of the Group considers that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on
payments for life insurance policies to an insurance
company. The directors of the Company consider
the counterparty is financial institution with good
reputation and the Group considers that the credit
risk is insignificant.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is
limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.
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FEmpE(E)

AEEMEERRSEF - 1R20165F12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents as well as undrawn banking facilities
deemed adequate by the directors of the Company
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The directors
of the Company monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and amount due to a director.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities which
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are variable
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
weighted average interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE2016F12A318 ILEE

29. EMIE(E)

(b)

CREREERERBER(E)

MEEZEEE

EERBECRARE  AEEERIWE
RARBEFTRARITMKFNRE - B
SEEYRARBARTRE - ALK
B ERHES MRRR S RE N
MFE - ARBERERRITIERLE
NEZEFRNERBR

TRALMAEE SR A BORIERS M
R RERNAKEAIEREENRTH
e B BN RMRESRERS
EPEEMNERASRERE - MRF
BERAEERE - AIRMBRSRIRER
FHRA IR F IR REE o

Weighted Repayable on

average  demand or Total
effective less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months cash flows amount
REERH REH
mE¥E =EAUR RERE
BEAZ= "E B fREE
% Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
% FET FET FET
At 31 December 2016 720165128318
Trade payables BHRNFR - 68,669 68,669 68,669
Other payables and accrued HAEAFIAEL
charges [E5TE A = 2,997 2,997 2,997
Bank borrowings - variable rate  $R{TEF—
FERIR 4.0 22,553 22,553 22,553
94,219 94,219 94,219
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

29. EMIE(E)

(b)

CREREERERBER(E)

B EZERE ()

Weighted Repayable on

average  demand or Total
effective less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months cash flows amount
JRHRE R N
METS ZEANRR Reng
B = B& Pk RHE
% Us$'000 Us$000 Us$'000
% TE7T FET FET
At 31 December 2015 RN2015512831H
Trade payables EHRNRIR - 46,281 46,281 46,281
Other payables and Hio N RIE K
accrued charges [EET 2 A - 3,963 3,963 3,963
Dividend payables FERRE = 4,000 4,000 4,000
Amount due to a director [ERN—REEFA - 600 600 600
Bank borrowings - variable rate  $R{7{EE
—ZEF=R 3.2 36,889 36,889 36,889
91,733 91,733 91,733
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand EERBRAITH - HRERKEENR

clause is included in the “repayable on demand or
less than 3 months” time band in the above maturity
analysis. At 31 December 2016, the aggregate
carrying amount of these bank borrowings
amounted to approximately US$22,553,000
(2015: US$36,889,000). Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors of the
Company do not believe that it is probable that
the bank will exercise their discretionary right to
demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such bank borrowings of
the Group will be repaid after the end of reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the bank borrowing agreement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE2016F12A318 ILEE

29. EMIE(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREREEEERBE(E)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) BB EE(E)
For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the REERBDECRER  ARREFCEHE
directors of the Company reviews the expected cash BASERITEENERRSRESR
flows information of the Group's bank borrowings K SLERERRITEERETED
based on the scheduled repayment dates set out FBEEFBHMmMESR - HIWT -
in the bank borrowing agreement as set out in the
table below:
Weighted
average Total
effectve  Lessthan 3 months 1to 3to undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  3months  to 1 year 2 years Syears  cashflows amount
RE5
ik 387 REhE
ERfZE  JR3ER  EREIE 1825 3E5% aE RAfE
% US$/000 US8/000 US$:000 US$/000 US8/000 US$:000
% 7T T TET TET T TET
Bank borrowings R/EH
At 31 December 2016 120165124318 40 22,289 155 207 84 22,735 22,553
At 31 December 2015 120155124318 32 36,521 180 207 304 37,218 36,889
Fair value measurements of financial instruments () SWMIAMNAFESE
The directors of the Company consider that the ARRIERRA - W PARIZRHAR

carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximates
their fair values at the end of each reporting period.

This note provides information about how the
Group determines fair values of various financial
assets and financial liabilities.

AAABMBERNEREERERABN
FREEEE QN FERS

A EERI A EBE TSRS RE
EMEBABENRTFENER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. EMIAE)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c)
(continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs

used).

Financial assets Fair value at

SREE ATER
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
20165128318 20154127318

EMIANDPEFRE)

UL FEHBOFEILHAER
AFEHHE

AEBEROEHEERREHROAF
BFtE - TREJIEEELSREEN
REENER(LERGETEALR
ERRBABUR) °

Fair value  Valuation technique(s)
hierarchy  and key input(s)
AVEER RELEIRERRARE

1) Listed available-for-sale Listed debt securities in  Listed debt securities in
investments (note 14) HK: US$1,277,000 HK: US$1,235,000
AR ERE(Fit14) EEBLTHER EER LmNES

#%5 11,277,0008%  E% :1,235000% 7T

2)  Unlisted available-for-sale  Unit trust funds Unit trust funds
investments (note 14) US$6,495,000 US$4,590,000
FEMAREERE BifsitES BfifzitEe
(H1it14) 6,495,000 0 4,590,000%71

Level 1 Quoted price in active market

F—& RRMIRIE

Level 2 Based on the net asset values of the
funds, determined with reference
to the observable (quoted) prices
of underlying investment portfolio
and adjustments of related
expenses

E-R ERESNARETE  25HEHRE
HERBR(RE)ERREEE
FHRREHEE

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2
during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

Transactions

The Group had the following transactions with

e B RS ERR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

30. BEEAHE
(@) X5

AEEERBMEEBBE OS5

related parties during the year: T
2016 2015
Name of related parties Nature of transaction Us$‘000 US$°000
BT £ REME FET TETT
Wisdom Fortune Corporation Sales of goods
Limited (note i) EmiHE - 6
ERERDR(H ) Purchases of goods
[ELaE - 2,268
Shenzhen Wisdom Fortune  Sales of goods
Technology Corporation B miHE - 66
Limited (note i)
AT ESRE AR A A Technical support services income
(Kfati) P S FE RIS HA - 1,202
Power-Core Limited (note i)  Sales of goods
CNBRAR(HiZi) A E - 261
Smart-Core Technology Co.,
Ltd (note ii) Sales of goods
BB RDBR R B (AT RS 178 203
Notes: et -

(i) Mr. Tian, Mr. Wong and Mr. Liu were shareholders of
these related companies. The entities were disposed of
to independent third parties during the year ended 31
December 2016.

(ii) Mr. Tian is a shareholder of the related company.

0) ML BEERBGTERU BB AR
HIRBRER - S EEREZ2016F12A3181E
FEHETELE=F -

(ii) L RREB A TR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Balances and other transactions

Details of balances and other transactions with
related parties are set out in notes 19 and 20.
Personal guarantees provided by Mr. Tian and
Mr. Wong in respect of bank borrowings of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 were
disclosed in note 24 and the personal guarantee
were released during the year ended 31 December
2016.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
other members of key management was as follows:

30.

BB T IRE ()
(b) RHREMRS

(c)

EREAR T M AE AR R HL A R S REIB AN BT
F195%20 c HE2015F12H31H IEF
ERBTEREEERASENEER
A E A ERFBEHNME24 - A&
AEREREZE2016F12831H IEF
S ERRR -

FEEE A SHH

RAREEREMTEEIEEBRK S BN
£

2016 2015

Uss$‘o000 US$000

FET FZET

Short term benefits 45 HRAE A 638 518
Post-employment benefits BB BT 13 20
651 538

The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined by the management of the Company
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31. B RER AN T LEE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of BEARRINBERR U BRAR 2ER
the Company at the end of the reporting period is set out T -
below:
2016 2015
Us$’000 US$000
FETT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EMBARZIEE 20,514 =
Amount due from a subsidiary JEU —FE BB A B 2 FIE 20,000 -
40,514 -
CURRENT ASSETS MENE EE
Prepayments TaftRIA 29 49
Amount due from a subsidiary FE—FEIRfT BB A B 2 BIE 4,323 -
Bank balances RITHERR 1 -
4,353 49
CURRENT LIABILITIES nRBEE
Other payables and accrued charges L fifl < 5118 [ fE 5+ & FH 852 791
Amounts due to subsidiaries LR NGRS = 415
852 1,206
NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) RENVEEFE(BEFE) 3,501 (1,157)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBDARR
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS FEEAE)
(LIABILITIES) 44,015 (1,157)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B R
Share capital (note 25) R&ZAR (Ha£25) 5 i
Reserves EE] 44,010 (1,157)
44,015 (1,157)
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e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31. Bt R R RADNTIGEE L)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Details of movement in reserves of the Company are as RRAEE 2 BEFFEOT -
below:
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
[ B4R ME RitE#B st
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET TET TET
At 22 October 2015 2015 10A22H
(date of incorporation) (s Iz BER) - = = =
Issue of new share during REARE TR D
the period = = = -
Loss and total comprehensive  HARESIE K2 HEFH A%
expenses for the period = = (1,157) (1,157)
At 31 December 2015 #2015 12H31H - - (1,157) (1,157)
Loss and total comprehensive  FEEEBRZHEF Y 45
expenses for the year - - 282 282
Issue of new shares BT 1 50,260 - 50,261
Capitalisation issue of BRI (H17725)
shares (note 25) 4 (4) = =
Transaction cost attributable BERETIRGK
to issue of new shares TN = (2,371) = (2,371)
Dividend recognised as ERADRARE
distribution - (3,000) - (3,000)
At 31 December 2016 20166124318 5 44,885 (875) 44,015
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE2016F12A31B LFE

PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. B ATHE
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 ARRAR20165F k2015F 12 A31 8 2B
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows: NEFIEERAOT

Place and date of Equity interest and

incorporation, voting power attributable

establishment and  Issued and fully ) to the Group

operations paid share capital/ AX%E{E;}QZ‘KEﬁ&_E%E

MR - B registered capital Directly Indirectly
Name of subsidiary REEHER ERTRBERE/ B A Principal activities
MEARER st AL B R 2016 2015 2016 2015 EEEH
SMC International HK HK Ordinary shares 100%  90% - - Trading of electronic
BEERES 26 April 2005 HK$10,000,000 components

BE Tl BEfialtES

200564 261 10,000,000/ 7T

Smart-Core Cloud Limited HK Ordinary shares 100%  90% - - Trading of electronic
BEEERAT 16 June 2014 HK$1,000,000 components
BE Tk EfRMES

201456 A16H 1,000,000/ 7T

SMC Technology SZ (note) The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 90% Trading of electronic
BRI () 6 February 2005 RMBS8,500,000 components
HE aftEA Efn&fEs
200552 6H AR #8,500,0007T
Shenzhen Smart-Core Cloud ~ The PRC Registered capital - - 100% 90% Trading of electronic
Technology Co., Limited 4 December 2015 RMB1,000,000 components
(note) i &R EfnaftEs
AMHEEES R 2015612548 AR#1,000,0007
BRRR(HE)
Note: The companies are registered in the form of wholly owned foreign Bist - ZERRTIAIINEB LR MK -

enterprises.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at RS BRI B A R B T A(ESE S
the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

33.

34.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the amount
represents the 10% equity interest held by the non-
controlling shareholder of SMC International HK and SMC
Cloud HK. On 24 February 2016, as part of the Group
Reorganisation as disclosed in Note 2, the Company
entered into an equity transfer agreement to acquire
all shares of SMC International HK and SMC Cloud HK
from Smart-Core Samoa for a total cash consideration
of US$20,514,049 and US$1, respectively. Upon the
completion of the equity transfer agreement on the
same date, the Company is deemed to acquire the non-
controlling interests and therefore, the Company owned
the entire equity interest in SMC International HK and
SMC Cloud HK since then and as at 31 December 2016.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(a) Share Award Scheme

The Company’s share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to the
written resolutions of all shareholders of the
Company on 19 September 2016 (“Date of
Adoption”) for the primary purpose of rewarding
the directors, senior managers and employees
("Eligible Persons”) of the Group for their hard
work, contribution and loyalty and align their
interest with those of shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(a)

Share Award Scheme (continued)

An award granted by the Board of the Company
to the Eligible Persons is a right of the relevant
participant to receive either shares of the Company
or the payment of the actual selling price in cash
at which the shares under the award are sold, net
of relevant selling costs, upon the vesting of such
award. Each award may be subject to such other
conditions as may be imposed by the Board at its
absolute discretion, including without limitation,
a vesting period. Share award must be taken up
within 7 days of the grant upon payment of HK$1
per award. The total number of shares in respect
of which shares may be granted under the Share
Award Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time. The number of shares award which may be
granted to any individual but unvested under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time.

Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the board of directors pursuant to
the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of 10 years commencing on the Date of
Adoption, after which period no further awards will
be granted but the provisions of the Share Award
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the
extent necessary to give effect to the vesting of any
awards granted prior to the expiration of the Share
Award Scheme, or otherwise to the extent as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Award Scheme.

No awards have been granted since the adoption of
the Share Award Scheme to 31 December 2016.
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HE2016F12A318 ILEE

34. URODBEBRNRRZ (&)

(a)

IR B & (E)

RARIEEEMEERALEDL Z 26
ATATERE 2B 55 B 12 WA A B IR 3k
HERBET RN Z2EREEZRS
(OB L SRR ) 2 #H) - FIH
REN A BE X E B S IIFHEINAYE M R4
R - BIEETRAEB M - ki
BERHERTBRNER - WS HiE
BB T o R () SRR B AT %
B AR 0 2B SN AT BB AN A B AT B
B EITRD FI10% ° IRIEAD B2 =T
BT F AT E A B K 53 B B A% 17 22D
H B T EBIBEARD RPN EE 2T
A& HI1% ©

HEEFRIBRMD R8I 2 RAIATEE
EMIRATARLERORTEE T » Bxin 2ERhET 3
FER IR B R 10F AR MR &
X MR EE S RIER D ZEET R 2
MAPRERRAR L - NIRRT E
— R AR - ARy SREN R &I 2 IR
FRIRFF T RN RAER - HEAER A
REETEIE AR h 2 (L 2R < R
ERUSIR - SIARIBA D 22 Bt Bl
PIREE RZE -

BE2016512 A 31 B AR BZE) 512
B A H A2 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31BIEFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b)

Share Option Scheme

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
written resolutions of all shareholders of the
Company passed on 19 September 2016 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives and awards
to an employee (whether full time or part-time) or
a director of a member of the Group or associated
companies of the Company for their contribution
to the Group and to align their interests with that
of the Company (“ESOS Eligible Person(s)”) so as
to encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer to
grant an option (the “Options”) to subscribe for
such number of shares in the Company at a price
determined by the Board, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of
grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company on the date of grant
of the option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing on
7 October 2016 (“Listing date”). Options granted
must be taken up not later than 30 days after the
date of grant. A consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option. The
total number of shares in respect of which shares
may be granted under the Share Award Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company as at the Listing Date, without prior
approval from the shareholders of the Company.
No options shall be granted to any participant
under the Share Option Scheme in excess of 1%
of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue at such date, without prior approval from the
shareholders of the Company. Any any time, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and not yet exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company to
ESOS Eligible Persons must not exceed 30% of the
total number of shares of the Company from time to
time.

The exercisable period of an option, which shall
not exceed 10 years from the Listing Date, is
determined by the Board at their discretion.

No options have been granted since the adoption
of Share Option Scheme to 31 December 2016.
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Four-Year Financial Summary

NEMBRE

RESULTS E S5
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013
UsD’000 USD’'000 USD’'000 USD’000
F=E5 FET FET FZET
Revenue WA 669,896 485,371 398,516 282,552
Profit before tax MRFLRIR)E 11,921 9,042 9,089 508
Income tax expenses FEHmER (2,494) (2,140) (1,707) (378)
Profit for the year FEFE 9,427 6,902 7,382 130
Attributable to: AT ARG -
Owners of the Company iN/NEIEZZ =N 9,279 6,096 6,644 117
Non-controlling interests SRR =R 148 806 738 13
9,427 6,902 7,382 130
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at 31 December
M12H318
2016 2015 2014 2013
UsSD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000
FETT FZET FET FZET
Total assets BEE 162,515 125,358 73,492 55,108
Total liabilities HER (105,675)  (102,127) (52,911) (42,088)
Total equity TS AEER 56,840 23,231 20,581 13,020
Attributable to: AT AL -
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIE 2SN 56,840 20,792 18,523 11,718
Non-controlling interests JEPEAR RS - 2,439 2,058 1,302
56,840 23,231 20,581 13,020
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